

SPIN USER GUIDE Version 13.0, US Edition

Legal Disclaimer

InfoEd International, Inc. has prepared this Document for use by InfoEd International, Inc. personnel, licensees, customers, and prospective clients. The information contained in this Document is solely owned, and proprietary to, InfoEd International, Inc. All materials and information contained in this Document are copyrighted and all rights and privileges contained therein are afforded to, and enforceable, by InfoEd International, Inc. The material and information contained in this Document may not be modified, altered, or integrated into any other electronic or printed material without first obtaining written permission from InfoEd International, Inc.

Licensees and customers may copy the information contained in this Document for distribution to authorized users for the purposes of developing internal training materials, provided that all titles, trademarks, and copyright, proprietary, and restricted rights notices shall be reproduced in all such copies or materials. Licensee shall not copy, make available, nor distribute all or part of the information contained in this Document to any third party by assignment, sublicense, subscription, or by any other means.

InfoEd International, Inc. shall not be liable for technical or editorial errors or omissions in this Document or in any reproduced, translated, or transmitted copies or for incidental or consequential damages resulting from the furnishing, performance, or use of this material.

InfoEd International, Inc. reserves the right to revise the information contained in this Document without advance notice. InfoEd International, Inc. will provide a revised electronic copy of this Document with each version release.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 2 of 144

Illustrative Prompts

We have scattered some simple illustrative prompts throughout this documentation for easy reference and recognition. Here's a listing of these prompts along with a brief description of each for you to familiarize yourself with and become accustomed to seeing.

Key Concept	This icon typically clues the user in to a key point in understanding and/or utilizing the selected system component, functionality or business rule.
Important Update	You will find this icon next to an important piece of information new to this release or a key update from previous documentation versions.
Critical Warning	Text by this icon provides the user with a point of advice on what to avoid to keep you on the right track.
Please Note	This icon calls attention to an additional word of note that the user may find helpful and/or informative for the selected subject matter.
Quick Tip	You will find this icon next to an important bit of information that the user might find useful in their quest to gain a quick insight into the subsequent section.
For Example	This icon is used to depict a sample scenario or illustrated example that more clearly demonstrates the selected functionality.





Manual Conventions

Note: Some warnings and notes within the text are written thusly for emphasis.

Because of the sheer number of setups and screens in the InfoEd Suite, navigating to a particular setup often involves several separate clicks; so, the navigation instructions are abbreviated, such as **Profile > Employment > Add New**. This shorthand representation should be interpreted as such: 'Select Profile, then Select Employment, and then Select Add New'.

In addition, all navigation instructions in this admin manual assume that you are beginning from the New Portal screen. If you are already working in the Old Portal, you should replace "Administration menu > Facility Management Admin" in the navigation directions with "Administration > Facility Management Admin."

Words bolded within a sentence are meant to direct you to click on a particular item or link; such as, 'Click on **Profile** to open your profile for examination and/or editing.'

A section containing a glossary and other supplemental information is located at the end of this document.



Cross-Referencing

This document has been enhanced with a myriad of cross-referencing links to allow users to more efficiently and effectively navigate their way through the various, interrelated pieces of functionality included in this documentation.

Cross-referencing links have been integrated into the Table of Contents as well as the Table of Figures sections of this document to allow a user to access a desired Section or Figure (screenshot) directly from their respective listing within the Table of Contents or Table of Figures.

For example, if a user would like to read more about the SPIN Main Screen, they would simply go to the Table of Contents and look for 'SPIN Main Screen' instead of reading which section and page number the 'SPIN Main Screen' information is located in and then manually paging through the document to find the desired page, Cross-referencing links on the Table of Contents, Table of Figures and throughout the narrative of this

documentation allow the user to press the ctrl a (control) button and single click on the desired Section number or page number to be brought automatically to the clicked on section/page.

Further, if the user would like to see a screenshot of the 'SPIN Main Screen', they would simply find the desired figure in the Table of Figures (Figure 8) and ctrl-click to be taken directly to the desired screenshot.

Cross-reference links have also been included within this documentation to refer to an item that appears in another location in a document. For example, you may be reading about the functionality of the SPIN Main Screen in a narrative section of text and next to where the screen name is listed we may have included (See Section 3.1) or (See Section 3.1, The SPIN Main Screen).

A simple listing of the related screenshot Figure and/or Section itself is very helpful in helping navigate your way successfully from screen-to-screen or section-to-section but to make it even easier, not only are the related Figure(s) and Section(s) listed, the numbers of the Section/Figure can be ctrl-clicked for instant access to the related item.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 5 of 144

Table of Contents

1	Welc	ome		12
2	Logg	ing Inte	o SPIN	13
	2.1	eRA A	Access	14
	2.2	Anony	ymous Access	
		2.2.1	SPIN Login & Copying Anonymous Settings Profile	
	2.3	Login	Access	
		2.3.1	Additional Functionality after Login	
3	Work	ing Wi	th SPIN	22
	3.1	The S	PIN Main Screen	
		3.1.1	The InfoEd SPIN Logo Icon	
		3.1.2	Signing Out of SPIN	
		3.1.3	The Yellow Tool Bar	
		3.1.4	Search Mode	
		3.1.5	Keyword Search Help	
		3.1.6	Progressive Text Feature	
4	Sear	ching F	For A Topic	33
	4.1	Basic	Search	
		4.1.1	Performing A Basic Search	
		4.1.2	Saving Your Search Criteria	35
		4.1.3	Results Returned	
		4.1.4	Navigating Through the Results Returned	
			4.1.4.1 Results Returned Program Count	40
			4.1.4.2 Results Returned Display Counter	41
			4.1.4.3 Results Returned Page Counter/Navigation Bar	42
		4.1.5	Sorting Search Results	
			4.1.5.1 Modifying the Order of the Columns	
			4.1.5.2 Grouping by the Columns	46
		416	Filtering Search Results	،47 ۸۵
		4.1.0	Viewing The Program Details	
		418	Minimizing The Program Details	
			4.1.8.1 Program Details Refresh Button	
		4.1.9	View More Detailed Opportunity Information	
		-	4.1.9.1 Opportunity Description Tab	
			4.1.9.2 Eligibility Requirements Tab	58





		4.1.9.3 Funding Guidelines Tab	60
		4.1.9.4 Sponsor Information Tab	62
		4.1.9.5 Funding Opportunity Number Information Box	63
	4.1.10) Bookmarking A Specific Program	64
	4.1.11	1 Exporting Your Search Results To Word or Excel	68
		4.1.11.1 Customizing Export Content	73
4.2	Adva	nced Search	77
	4.2.1	Advanced Search Icon Bar	
		4.2.1.1 AND/OR Search Logic	79
		4.2.1.2 Add Expression	80
		4.2.1.2.1 Single-Level Advanced Search Example	85
		4.2.1.3 Add Group	
		4.2.1.3.1 Multi-Level Advanced Search Example	
	4.2.2	An Advanced Search Example	
4.3	Categ	gory Filters	92
	4.3.1	Applicant Location	
	4.3.2	Applicant Type	
	4.3.3	Project Type	
	4.3.4	Project Location	100
	4.3.5	Citizenship Status	101
4.4	Searc	ch Options	102
	4.4.1	Search Options	103
	4.4.2	Detail View Column Options	107
4.5	Searc	ches	110
	4.5.1	Saved Searches	111
	4.5.2	Shared Searches	115
4.6	Book	marks	119
	4.6.1	Bookmarked Opportunities	120
	4.6.2	Shared Opportunities	124
4.7	Fundi	ing Guides	
	4.7.1	Browse Federal Business Opportunities	127
	4.7.2	US Federal Register Guide	
4.8	Kevw	vords	131
	4.8.1	Search	132
	norr	4.8.1.1 Including Broader and Narrower Terms	
	4.8.2	Saved Keyword Groups	
	4.8.3	Shared Keyword Groups	
	4.8.4	Using a Keyword Group as Part of a Search	



Table of Figures

Figure 1	Logging into the eRA Portal	14
Figure 2	Find Funding in the eRA Portal	15
Figure 3	SPIN Main Screen	16
Figure 4	InfoEd Global Website	17
Figure 5	Accessing SPIN Via the InfoEd Website	17
Figure 6	SPIN Sign In Link	18
Figure 7	SPIN Login Popup	18
Figure 8	SPIN Main Screen	22
Figure 9	New InfoEd SPIN Logo Icon	24
Figure 10	SPIN Logo Icon Screen Refresh	25
Figure 11	Logout Popup	25
Figure 12	The Yellow Tool Bar	26
Figure 13	Search Mode	27
Figure 14	Keyword Search Help Popup	28
Figure 15	Basic Search	34
Figure 16	Performing a Basic Search	35
Figure 17	Save Current Criteria Popup	36
Figure 18	Results Returned Section	37
Figure 19	Category in SPIN Search	
Figure 20	Results Returned Program Count	40
Figure 21	Results Returned Display Counter	41
Figure 22	Results Returned Page Counter/Navigation Bar	42
Figure 23	Modifying the Order of the Columns	45
Figure 24	Modifying the Order of the Columns – The Results	45
Figure 25	Grouping by the Columns	46
Figure 26	Grouping by the Columns – The Results	47
Figure 27	Sort Results Using the Column Header(s)	48
Figure 28	Sort Results Using the Column Header(s) – Reverse Order	49



Figure 29	Filtering Search Results	49
Figure 30	Program Details Checkbox & Plus/Minus Button	51
Figure 31	View Program Details – Default View	52
Figure 32	Expand Program Details	53
Figure 33	View Program Details – Expanded View	53
Figure 34	Minimize Program Details	54
Figure 35	Program Details Refresh	55
Figure 36	Opportunity Title Link	55
Figure 37	Opportunity Information Popup	56
Figure 38	Opportunity Description Tab	57
Figure 39	Eligibility Requirements Tab – Scroll 1	58
Figure 40	Eligibility Requirements Tab – Scroll 2	59
Figure 41	Funding Guidelines Tab	60
Figure 42	Sponsor Information Tab	62
Figure 43	Screenshot Name	63
Figure 44	Bookmarking a Specific Program in Results Returned	65
Figure 45	Bookmark Group Popup	65
Figure 46	Bookmark Group Popup – Create New Bookmark Group	66
Figure 47	Bookmark Group Popup – Select Existing Bookmark Group	67
Figure 48	Bookmark Group Popup – Select Multiple Existing Bookmark Groups	67
Figure 49	Export Search Results Feature	68
Figure 50	File Download Popup	69
Figure 51	Sample Exported Search Results Document	69
Figure 52	Exported Document Save As Popup	70
Figure 53	Download Complete Popup	71
Figure 54	Folder View Popup	71
Figure 55	Different Format Validation Popup	72
Figure 56	Microsoft Office Help Screen	73
Figure 57	Customizing Export Content – Example 1	74
Figure 58	Customizing Export Content – Example 1 Resulting Exported Document	74

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 9 of 144



Figure 59	Customizing Export Content – Example 2	75
Figure 60	Customizing Export Content – Example 2 Resulting Exported Docume	nt76
Figure 61	SPIN Search Options Popup – Advanced Search	77
Figure 62	Advanced Search Main Page	78
Figure 63	Advanced Search Icon Bar	78
Figure 64	AND/OR Search Logic Function	79
Figure 65	Add Expression Icon Bar	80
Figure 66	Adding An Expression – Full Program/Field List	81
Figure 67	Adding An Expression – Contains Lists	84
Figure 68	Adding An Expression – Equals List	85
Figure 69	Single Level Advanced Search Sample	86
Figure 70	Multi-Level Advanced Search	87
Figure 71	Advanced Search – Setting Up The First Expression	88
Figure 72	Advanced Search – Adding A Second Expression	89
Figure 73	Advanced Search - Adding Additional Expressions	89
Figure 74	Advanced Search - Adding Groups	90
Figure 75	Category Filters Main Menu	92
Figure 76	SPIN Search Filters Popup	93
Figure 77	Applicant Location	95
Figure 78	Applicant Type	97
Figure 79	Project Type	99
Figure 80	Project Location	100
Figure 81	Citizenship Status	101
Figure 82	Search Options Main Menu	103
Figure 83	SPIN Search Options Popup	103
Figure 84	Detail View Column Options	108
Figure 85	Chosen Detail View Columns	109
Figure 86	Chosen Detail View Columns - Results	110
Figure 87	Searches Main Menu	110
Figure 88	Available Saved Searches Screen	111

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 10 of 144



Figure 89	Load Selected Criteria Popup	114
Figure 90	Search Results	115
Figure 91	Available Shared Searches	116
Figure 92	Load Selected Criteria Popup	117
Figure 93	Loading A Shared Search	118
Figure 94	Shared Search Results	118
Figure 95	Bookmarks Main Menu	120
Figure 96	Bookmarked Opportunities	121
Figure 97	Add New Group Popup	123
Figure 98	Shared Opportunities	125
Figure 99	Shared Opportunities – Viewing Shared Programs	126
Figure 100	Funding Guide Main Page	127
Figure 101	FedBizOpps	128
Figure 102	US Federal Register Guide	130
Figure 103	Keywords Main Menu	131
Figure 104	Keywords Screen	132
Figure 105	Searching for a Keyword	133
Figure 106	Broadening Your Search	136
Figure 107	Narrowing Your Search	137
Figure 108	Keyword Group Name Popup	137
Figure 109	Confirm Exit Popup	138
Figure 110	Saved Keyword Groups	139
Figure 111	Saved Groups – Expanded Detail	141
Figure 112	Shared Keyword Groups	142
Figure 113	Using a Keyword Group as Part of a Search	144

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 11 of 144



1 Welcome



InfoEd is the leading provider of software solutions for managing sponsored programs. Worldwide, over six hundred academic, medical and scientific institutions rely on InfoEd to support their grant and contract activity. InfoEd's proven web-based modules streamline processes, enable proactive monitoring of compliance, and enhance internal and external collaboration.

SPIN provides a comprehensive warehouse of current and relevant funding opportunities for a variety of types of applicants.

Sponsors, both public and private, from around the world, are covered on a regular basis to ensure that the most up to date information is provided.

The application is designed to place the user as the central factor in the queries; various options and filters are available to describe the applicant (and his/her organization) as well as the applicant's current needs.

SPIN also contains functionality for the administrative level, allowing those with appropriate access to distribute and share both information and preconfigured options and searches the rest of the organization. SPIN is designed to be the single funding data repository resource for students, postdocs, faculty, academic staff, and a variety of other professionals.



2 Logging Into SPIN

There are multiple ways to login into the SPIN system. The mechanism of access will depend on what type of license your institution maintains with InfoEd Global.

Some institutions maintain their own local installation of InfoEd eRA software. These institutions will most likely access SPIN with authentication through their local portal via a website that is specific to their organization (see eRA Access in table below and Section 2.1).

Many other institutions subscribe to SPIN on a "Software as a Service" basis, in which case they will most likely be directed to the main InfoEd Global website for SPIN access. Logging into SPIN via the InfoEd Global website does not required IP based access, but it can be accomplished via IP based which generally authorizes the entirety of an institution's campus where users can access SPIN anonymously (see Section 2.2, Anonymous Access) or can utilize a username and password login to access their selected user profile/account (See Section 2.3, Login Access).

Please Note	If you are unsure which mechanism of SPIN access applies to your organization, please see your administrator.
eRA Access	eRA access is for users whose institution has a dedicated InfoEd server environment which means they currently have subscription(s) to a number of InfoEd's administrative module(s) as well as SPIN.
	Institutions maintaining their own local installation of InfoEd eRA software may access the SPIN section by logging into the eRA portal.
	Access via the eRA portal requires the use of the eRA username and password.
	Please see Section 2.1, eRA Access for more information.
Anonymous Access	If your organization has a paid subscription for SPIN and you are a user whose IP address falls within an IP range designated by your organization you will be able to access the system anonymously via the InfoEd Global website.
	Please see Section 2.2, Anonymous Access for more information.
Login Access	If your organization is a paying subscriber but you are not within a designated IP range for anonymous access; you must successfully log in to access SPIN.
	Please see Section 2.3, Login Access for more information.



2.1 eRA Access

Your organization may have a paid subscription for both the SPIN module and additional administrative modules. If this is the case, you will most likely be directed to a website that is specific to your institution's domain. If you were given a login username and password from your administrator, you may log into the eRA portal. Otherwise, you may need to create a profile.



To log into the eRA portal, begin by entering your username and password.

Figure 1 Logging into the eRA Portal

InfoEd eRA Portal Streamlining Electronic Research Administration		
Login		
Home »Login	Login	
Get Profile SPIN GENIUS Technology Portal	Username cmorrissey Password ······	

Once you have successfully logged into the eRA Portal, you must click on the 'Find Funding' link (see Figure 2) located on the top left of the screen to access the SPIN functionality.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 14 of 144

Figure 2 Find Funding in the eRA Portal

InfoEd	Logged in Lines: Ms. Cassandra Morrissey		Tuesday, January 03	3			
IIIOEu	Find Funding						
Exit Help Portal Support	Records Found: 93. Displaying pages 1 through 4 of 4 1 2 3 4			i	nfol	Ed	
H. David	My Open Action Items		Ms. Cassandra Morrisey	M	v Cale	ndar	2
My Proposals	Open Assigned/Due	Item PI Nam	Action Required	1 3	anuary	2012	
My Awards	Revealed average weeks weeks and the weeks a	Proposal · Frie Price	ACTION TEST 101	6 11	*		10
My Financials	9:32:53 AM Due=211 days ago(184 Open Action Items) New Proposal Created for Erin Driscoll on 01-Jun-2011 9:3	80205.PT.076 CHA DAS 2:19 AM	PI (2018) 2018 C. 2018	1 2	3 4	5 6	7
External Interests	Tuesday, June 14, 2011	Proposal - Dan	ACTION TEST 101	8 9	10 11	12 13	3 14
My Human Subjects	New Proposal Created for Dan DeGregory on 14-Jun-2011	12:44:33 PM		15 16	17 18	19 20	21
Hy Animal Use	Tuesday, June 14, 2011 2108100 PM Due=197 days ago(185 Open Action Items)	Proposal - Dan 80205.PT.080 DeGrego	ACTION TEST 101	29 30	31	26 21	28
My Profile	New Proposal Created for Dan DeGregory on 14-Jun-2011	2:07:25 PM Pronosal - Danielle	ACTION TEST 101	Jan 👻	2012		
	 9:01:49 AM Due=197 days age(185 Open Action Items) New Proposal Created for Danielle Mancino on 15-Jun-201 	80205.PT.081 Mancino 1 9:01:13 AM		1-Day	+ 1 h	n.	•
Administration	Wednesday, June 15, 2011	Proposal - Robert	ACTION TEST 101	Hy Acti	on Iten	15	
	 4:05:15 PM Due=197 days ago(185 Open Action Items) New Proposal Created for Robert Butler on 15-Jun-2011 4 	107:37 PM		-	Open		
	Thursday, June 16, 2011 9:53:01 AM Outer 100 days and 185 Over Addon (turns)	Proposal - Mr 80205.PT.083 Christop	ACTION TEST 101	2	Compl	eted	



Once the Find Funding link is selected, the SPIN Main Screen (Figure 3) will open, and you may begin to use the application.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 15 of 144

Figure 3 SPIN Main Screen						
infoed SPW				Jes	s Gorman InfoEd	Global <u>Sign Out</u>
	Category Filters 👻	Search Options 👻	Searches 🔻	Bookmarks 👻	Funding Guides 👻	Keywords 👻
Search mode: BASIC						
Enter search terms here or select the $\mathcal P$ for help				X Search	?	
		* Daily convers	ion rates provide	ad by XE.com. <u>Term</u>	<u>ns of Use</u> .	info <mark>Ed</mark>

Please see Section 3, Working With SPIN, and Section 3.1, The SPIN Main Screen for more information on how to begin using this module.

2.2 Anonymous Access

If your organization has a paid subscription for SPIN, this setup is granted to all users whose IP address from the requesting computer falls within the IP range given to InfoEd Global for SPIN access by your organization.

Critical Warning	Certain functional elements of the application like saving searches and bookmarking opportunities for future use will not be available to users utilizing this mechanism of access as you are not logged- in and therefore do not have a user profile to assign changes or save information to.
	Be warned that if you'd like to save search settings and results, bookmark opportunities, or use some of the more enhanced SPIN functionality, you must login to the SPIN system.

To access the SPIN module anonymously, you must first access the InfoEd Global website (Figure 4) at <u>http://www.infoedglobal.com</u>

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 16 of 144



jure 4 InfoEd Gl	obal Website
CL	IENT LOGIN TO: SPIN QS SPIN GENIUS ICAG ITEMS
N info _E	Client Login Request Information
G LOBA	About InfoEd Global Services Education News & Events Contact Us
Who Benefits from InfoEd	
CEO's / Research Executives / Deans	
Researchers / Principal Investigators	
Application Users / Administrators	
CTO's / IT Directors / Technical Support	
CFO's / Finance Officers / Comptrollers	

Once the screen loads, click 'SPIN' in the top navigation bar as shown in Figure 5.



Figure 5 Accessing SPIN Via the InfoEd Website

Upon selection of the 'SPIN' link in the navigation bar, the SPIN Main Screen (Figure 3) will open. Once the screen has opened, you may select to either work as an anonymous user or login to the system as a specific user.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 17 of 144



Quick Tip	Again, if you select to work in SPIN as an anonymous user, remember that certain functional elements of the application will not be available.
	For example, with no user profile in use, none of the settings you have designated nor any of the searches you perform may be saved for future use.
	If you'd like to utilize the bookmarking, filtering, saving, and searching functionality, you must have a SPIN login name and password and must sign in to save any changes to your select user profile.

If you were provided a SPIN username and password and wish to sign into the system, click the 'Sign In' link at the top right corner of the screen (see Figure 6).

Figure 6	SPIN Sign In Link
----------	-------------------

		Anonymous Use	er InfoEd Internation:	al, Inc. <u>Sign In</u>
Category Filters 👻 🖉	Options 🔻 Searches 👻	Bookmarks 👻	Funding Guides 🔻	Keywords 👻

Once clicked, the link will open the SPIN Login Popup window (Figure 7).

Figure 7 SPIN Login Popup

infoed SPIN		Anonymous User InfoEd International, Inc. Sign In
Search mode: BASIC	Login ×	Bookmarks V Funding Guides V Keywords V
Enter search terms here; See ? for instructions	Password: Copy anonymous settings to your profile? Remember me?	X Search 2 ?
	Not a subscriber yet? <u>Click here</u> to speak to us.	
	* Daily conversion rates provi	Ided by XE.com. Terms of Use.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 18 of 144



In the SPIN Login popup, you have a few options:

- You may simply enter your Login ID and Password, logging you into the SPIN system as a specific user (allowing you to save your settings and searches).
- Or, if you were previously using the system as an anonymous user, but now wish to login, you may copy over and save any filters and search options you had set during this session to your user profile.

Login ID	The SPIN username assigned to you via your organization.
Password	The SPIN password assigned to you via your organization.
Copy anonymous settings to your profile?	A checkbox that when checked will copy over and save any filters and search options you had set during your current session to update your user profile. If left unchecked, none of the details of your current session will be saved to your user profile.
Remember me?	A checkbox that when checked will save your login and password information, allowing you to bypass this popup window next time you access the SPIN system. If left unchecked, your login information will not be saved and you will have to enter your Login ID and Password the next time you try to access the SPIN system.

2.2.1 SPIN Login & Copying Anonymous Settings Profile

Upon login to the SPIN system, you will enter your username and password and click on the Copy anonymous settings to your profile? checkbox, and then click on the Login popup window (Figure 7) will close, saving any changes/searches you preformed while anonymous, updating your user profile with the selected changes and then allowing you to access them at a later time.

Critical Warning	Copying anonymous settings into your profile will overwrite the category filters and search options last saved to your unique profile.
	Only use this option if you have configured these settings prior to logging in and do not wish to retrieve the most recent settings from the last time you logged in.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 19 of 144



You may select to click the Remember Me checkbox . This will save your login and password information, allowing you to bypass this popup window the next time you access SPIN.

<u>Click here</u> to speak to us.	If you are not a subscriber yet, or have any questions, you may click the <u>Click Here</u> link at the bottom of the popup window. This will open XXX.

Once you are finished entering your login information on the Login popup window, click the Login button. The popup window will close, you will be signed in, and you may begin to use the SPIN system as an authenticated user (see Section 2.3, Login Access).

2.3 Login Access

If your organization is a SPIN paying subscriber but has not specified an IP range for anonymous access, you will be forced to log in. Additionally, you may have IP range access but wish to log in distinctly because of the additional functionality that will be available to authenticated users, as well as the ability to access SPIN from outside of your institution's network.



If you do not have a username and password for SPIN only, you will be unable to access the SPIN module. For questions on this, please see your administrator.

2.3.1 Additional Functionality after Login

As mentioned previously, there are additional elements of functionality available to users that login with their unique username and password. These elements are available to both eRA Access (accessing SPIN via your institution's local InfoEd portal) users as well as direct Login Access users (accessing SPIN from the main InfoEd website).

The details of the following elements are discussed in their own sections below.

However, the following functionality becomes available to SPIN users that are logged-in with a distinct profile:

• Category Filter selections, used to describe yourself and your institution and filter on opportunity eligibility requirements, will be retained across different use sessions for users who are logged-in (see Section 4.3, Category Filters for more information).

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 20 of 144



- In the Options and Detail View Column Options sections, making selections on what you wish to search by and how you would like the results to appear cannot be saved unless you are logged into the system (see Section 4.4, Search Options for more information).
- The ability to save/access Saved Searches is available for logged-in users only (see Section 4.5, Searches for more information). However, searches shared by an administrator are accessible to anonymous users.
- The Bookmarks section is a way to save the search you conducted then share your work, even after you've navigated away from the page. If you are logged in, you have the option to Bookmark your work and then share it with other users. If you are not logged in, you will only have access to opportunities shared by your administrator (see Section 4.6, Bookmarks for more information).
- A user has the ability to identify key words and group them in the Keyword section for use in the advanced search but Keyword Groups can only be saved if the user is logged into the system (see Section 4.8, Keywords for more information).

Please Note	Please note that if you'd like to save search settings and results, bookmark opportunities, or use some of the more enhanced SPIN functionality, you must login to the SPIN system.
	If you are not logged into the system, your search results, bookmarks and other settings will not be retained beyond the existing session.



3 Working With SPIN

Congratulations, you're in! This section will introduce you to the SPIN Main Screen and some of the universal functionality/features of the SPIN system.

Important Update	All of the pictures in this section of the manual are taken as a logged-in user. Depending on your privileges, some of the options may not be available or the pictures may appear different.
	Please see your administrator with questions.

3.1 The SPIN Main Screen

The SPIN Main Screen (Figure 8) provides users with multiple options in performing searches, saving information, and using keywords to aid in a search. Whether you're accessing the page as an anonymous user or logged in, the main page will appear the same.

	Jess Gorman InfoEd Global <u>Sign</u>
	Category Filters Search Options Searches Bookmarks Funding Guides Keywords
Search mode: BASIC	
Enter search terms here or select the '?' for help	X Search 🔛 ?
	* Daily conversion rates provided by XE.com. <u>Terms of Use</u> .

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 22 of 144



Since the page contains a lot of information, we will begin by providing a brief overview of the various screen elements:

InfoEd Spin Logo	At any point in the system, you may click this logo and it will return you to a refreshed SPIN Main Screen (Figure 10).
User Name (May be 'Anonymous User' if you're not logged in)	A user is logged into the system (pictured above), which is why there is a name present. If you do not log in, nothing will be displayed.
(Company Name Header) InfoEd International Inc.	This is a standard title which is present on the screen whether the user is logged-in or not. It will always be displayed.
(Daily Conversion Rate Notification)	This is a standard notification which is present on the screen whether the user is logged-in or not.
* Daily conversion rates provided by XE.com. <u>Terms of Use</u> .	It is a notification that the daily conversion rates (for international monetary fields and calculations) are provided by XE.com.
	Clicking on the <u>Terms of Use</u> link will open the XE Currency website (http://www.xe.com/legal/dfs.php) where the user can read the XE End User Terms of Use Agreement.
(Logo Footer)	This is a standard footer logo which is present on the screen whether the user is logged-in or not. It will always be displayed on the bottom of the page.
Sign In/Out Link	If the page opens in Anonymous Access, the link will appear as 'Sign In'.
	The anonymous user can click on this link to access the SPIN Login Popup window (Figure 7) where they will enter their username and password to login to the SPIN system.
	If a user is already logged in, this link will appear as 'Sign Out' (Section 3.1.2, Signing Out of SPIN).

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 23 of 144



3.1.1 The InfoEd SPIN Logo Icon

Done with your current search and want to start anew? Have a brilliant idea for a new search but you're in the middle of something else?

Forget repeatedly clicking a random 'Back' button or mindlessly double-clicking away to close an endless stream of interconnected windows...

To enhance system usability, we have positioned the new InfoEd SPIN Logo (Figure 8) in the left top of the SPIN window frame so that any point in the system, you may click this logo and it will return you to the SPIN Main Screen.

Figure 9	New InfoEd SPIN Logo Icon
	infoed SPIN'
	Search mode: BASIC

When the Logo icon is clicked, wherever you are in the system, whatever page you are on will immediately be minimized or closed (without saving in some instances) and you will be returned to a refreshed SPIN Main Screen defaulted to whichever search mode you last utilized..

Critical Warning	Please note that wherever you happen to be in the SPIN system when you decide to click on the SPIN Logo Icon, any subwindows you have open or any search you may be performing will immediately be minimized or in some instances may even close without saving (if applicable).
	As such, any searches you may have been performing may not be saved so if before clicking on the Logo Icon to refresh the view, make sure you have performed any desired saves or bookmarked your current view(s).

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 24 of 144



g SPN.			C	assandra Morrissej	y InfoEd Internationa	I, Inc. <u>Sign Ou</u>
	Category Filters 👻	Options 👻	Searches 👻	Bookmarks 👻	Funding Guides 👻	Keywords 🔻
Search mode: BASIC						
Enter search terms here or select the $\ensuremath{\mathscr{V}}$ for help				× Search	?	
		* Daily conver	sion rates provid	ed by XE.com. <u>Terr</u>	ms of Use. 🚫 İ	info <mark>Ec</mark>

3.1.2 Signing Out of SPIN

SPIN Logo Icon Screen Refresh

When a user is logged into the SPIN system, there will be a link on the top right of the screen that says 'Sign Out'.

Clicking the Sign Out link will open a Logout Popup window (Figure 11).

Logout	×
Are you sure you would like to sign out?	
Yes No	

Figure 11 Logout Popup

Figure 10

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 25 of 144



If you do in fact wish to logout, click the Yes button. If you change your mind and do not wish to logout of SPIN, click either the No button or the X in the right corner of the popup to return to the SPIN Main Screen.

3.1.3 The Yellow Tool Bar

On the right top of the SPIN Main Screen located under the User Name and Sign In/Out link, there is a yellow tool bar (Figure 12) containing a myriad of additional elements of functionality that make SPIN even more comprehensive and user-friendly.

Figure 12	The Yellow Tool Bar				
Category Filters	 Options 	Searches 🔻	Bookmarks 🔻	Funding Guides 👻	Keywords 👻

Here is a basic description of each of the elements in the Yellow Tool Bar, remember, each of these elements are discussed in detail in their own individual sections:

Category Filters	Hovering your cursor over the Category Filters section triggers a drop down menu allowing you to choose a filter that describes you or your institution. There are five different categories to choose from.Please see Section 4.3, Category Filters for more information.
Options	The drop down menu within the Options section includes two selections, Search Options and Detail View Column Options, where the user can designate SPIN-specific search options to search by and designate how they would like the search results to appear: Please see Section 4.4, Search Options for more information.
Searches	After you search for an opportunity, especially if you've identified specific filters or criteria to apply to your search, you may want to save or share the search parameters using the elements in this Searches tab. Please see Section 4.5, Searches for more information.



Bookmarks	The Bookmarks section is a way to save the search you conducted then share your work, even after you've navigated away from the page. Please see Section 4.6, Bookmarks for more information.
Funding Guides	This section is a series of preconfigured searches/reports, already saved within the system. You may either Browse the US Federal Business Opportunities or the US Federal Register Guide. Please see Section 4.7, Funding Guides for more information.
Keywords	This section provides access to search/browse SPIN's controlled vocabulary, based on the Library of Congress Subject Headings. Please see Section 4.8, Keyword for more information.

3.1.4 Search Mode

One of InfoEd Global's main objectives in the enhancement of the SPIN system was to further improve the scalability and usability of the system. As such, we are introducing two distinct modes of searching, 'BASIC' or 'ADVANCED', both user-friendly as well as intuitive.

On the SPIN Main Screen, there is a blender button where the user now has the option to click on it and change the Search Mode to suit their individual preferences and search needs.

Figure 13 Search Mode

Search mode: BASIC

The Basic search is a way to search for programs using a simple word or term. This method will return numerous results, allowing you to sift through and find the program you're looking for. See Section 4.1, Basic Search for more on the Basic search mode.

The Advanced search allows users to search using more specific guidelines; returning more precise results. Since this function is very detailed and specific, it's geared more towards a user that is familiar with the system and what type of program they are interested in. See Section 4.2, Advanced Search for more information on the Advanced search mode.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 27 of 144



3.1.5 Keyword Search Help

The Help button opens the Keyword Search Help popup window (Figure 14) which contains an explanation of the different types of keywords you may search by, and the results they will pull back.

infoEd SPIN'			
	Keyword Search Help	×	Inc. <u>Sign Out</u>
Search mode	This version of SPIN Search integrates v complex of a search as you would like to titles, sponsor names, synopses, object fields. The search automatically invokes inflect test, tests, tested, and testing. This can The search also has the ability pass the for. For example, a search for cancer will terms. This can be invoked for all terms individual term you want passed through strings (e.g. "search term") via the thesa The search also contains a number of c can be combined together, along with pa what you are looking for.	with a modern full-text search engine. It is designed to allow you to perform as simple or as . Searches are carried out against the entire text of the SPIN programs; this includes opportunity ives, as well as funding opportunity numbers, email addresses, keywords, and several other ional forms of the entered words. For example, a search for test will scan all SPIN programs for: be disabled by inserting a plus sign (+) before the search term, as shown below. entered terms through an integrated thesaurus, potentially expanding the terms being searched scan all SPIN programs for: cancer, carcinogens, chemotherapy, tumors, oncology, and other entered terms. Note that enabling the Find Similar Terms checkbox, or by inserting a '~' before each the thesaurus. Note that enabling the Find Similar Terms checkbox will not expand quoted urus by default. You must insert a ~ before the quoted string, as shown below. apabilities to build complex searches with various logic and grammar parsing. The commands irrenthetical logic to dictate the order of operations, for building complex queries defining exactly	Keywords 🔻
	Example Input	Description	
	Scientific research	Searches for records containing 'scientific' and 'research' or their inflectional forms	
	Scientific OR research	Searches for records containing 'scientific' or 'research' or their inflectional forms	
	"Scientific research"	Wrapping terms in double quotes searches for records containing the phrase 'scientific research'	
	Scientific -research	Inserting a minus symbol before a term searches for records containing 'scientific' and not 'research'	
	+scientific	Inserting a plus symbol before a term performs search after disabling expansion for inflectional forms	
	Scient*	Appending an asterisk to a term invokes a wildcard search: searches for records containing 'scient' and any suffix	
	<scientific research=""></scientific>	Wrapping terms in angled brackets searches for records containing 'scientific' and 'research' and ranks results by the proximity of the two.	
	~Scientific research	Inserting a tilde searches for records containing 'scientific' or its related terms in the thesaurus, and 'research'	
	~"Scientific research"	Inserting a tilde before a quoted phrase searches for records containing the phrase 'scientific research' or its related terms in the thesaurus	
			nfoed GLOBAL

Figure 14 Keyword Search Help Popup





The SPIN system searches for words using their inflectional forms, allowing for multiple editions of the same word to pull into searches.



The Keyword Search Help gives users a detailed explanation of each option they have when searching.

The popup window describes nine different search techniques available:

Railroad Transportation	Typing in 'Railroad' and 'Transportation' searches for programs containing the specific words or their inflectional forms. Both words need to be present to be included in the results, but they don't need to be directly next to each other.
For Example	The title of a program in the results could be: 20th Century Railroad: How Transportation Changed Us.
Railroad OR Transportation	Typing either 'Railroad' or 'Transportation' searches for programs containing either of the words or their inflectional forms.
For Example	Programs titled: Steam Railroads or American Transportation could show up in the results.
"Railroad Transportation"	Putting quotes around a word or term searches for programs containing that specific phrase. Both words need to be present in that specific order to show in results.
For Example	Programs containing terms such as 'Transportation: Railroad' or 'Railroads Transportation' will not be present in the results, ONLY 'Railroad Transportation' will be available.
Railroad -Transportation	Inserting a dash before a word searches for programs containing 'railroad' and NOT 'transportation'.
For Example	Programs containing terms such as 'Railroad US' or 'Railroads Billing' will be present in the results. Anything with the word Transportation in it will be excluded.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 29 of 144



+Railroad	Inserting a plus symbol before a word performs searches by disabling the use of inflectional forms.
For Example	If you search '+sleep', ONLY 'sleep' programs will be returned. Programs containing sleeps or sleeping will not be included.
Rail*	Placing an asterisk to a word invokes a search containing the indicated root plus any suffix of the word.
For Example	If you search for 'rail*', programs including Railroad, Railing, Railway, and Railcar will all display in your results.
<railroad Transportation></railroad 	Wrapping words or terms in angled brackets searches for programs containing 'Railroad' and 'Transportation', and ranks results by the proximity of the two.
For Example	Searching for ' <railroad transportation="">' returns programs such as: High Speed Railroad Transportation and Railroad Applications Transportation.</railroad>
~Railroad Transportation	Inserting a tilde before a word searches for programs containing 'Railroad' or its related terms, such as rail or road.
For Example	Searching for '~railroad' returns programs such as: Rail Application System, Rail Transit Signal, and sponsors including Federal Railroad Administration.
~"Railroad Transportation"	Inserting a tilde before a quoted term or phrase searches for programs containing the term 'Railroad Transportation' or its related terms, in the thesaurus.
For Example	This icon is used to depict a sample scenario or illustrated example that more clearly demonstrates the selected functionality.

Once you are finished, press the icon to close the Keyword Search Help popup window. From here, you may utilize the multiple search techniques to help pull back additional results. Whether you're using the basic or advanced search method, the same results will be available, providing a detailed explanation of each program and its requirements.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 30 of 144



3.1.6 Progressive Text Feature

A helpful tool when using the basic search is the availability of the progressive text feature. There are two progressive text functions that will appear to the user, one available in the Basic search mode, another when a user is in Advanced search mode.

The first progressive text feature is a browser-based function that auto-completes text based on the user's previous inputs when they are in Basic search mode.

For Example	A user is interested in programs about the earth so they go to the SPIN Home Screen and in Basic search mode, they enter the words 'soil' and 'sod' in the blank search text box.
	The user then leaves the SPIN Home screen to later return to the SPIN Home Screen in Basic search mode and starts typing the letter 'S' in the blank search text box
	A picklist will display 'soil' and 'sod' as well as any other terms they already searched for beginning with the letter 'S'.

The second progressive text feature is enabled when using the Advanced search method when saving a search or keyword group, and this is a function of the application itself. The picklists that appear are coded to provide progressive text against the user's current options, although it's only available for specific search options including:

- Contact Country,
- Contact Name,
- Cost Sharing,
- Deadline Type,
- Indirect Cost,
- Limited Submission,

- Open Application Period,
- Sponsor Mechanism,
- Sponsor,
- Sponsor Type, and
- Target Group.

With these 11 options, you may either start typing in the text box and the picklist will open containing similar options, or you may click the $\overline{}$ icon to open the full list. This helps direct users to more specific search options and save time.

For Example	A user is interested in programs where the Contact person is located in Uganda.
	In the Advanced search mode, the user would create an expression where the Contact Country is Equal to Uganda.
	When the user begins typing in 'Uganda' and enters in the letter 'U', all Contact Country names in the picklist that begin with the letter U will appear.



Please Note	This is a browser-based function available in most modern browsers, and is not tied to SPIN or your user profile. If a user logs into their profile from a different browser or computer, this progressive text feature will not perform a lookup to their previous searches
	searches.

SPIN USER GUIDE, *VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc.* Page 32 of 144



4 Searching For A Topic

The primary function of the SPIN module is to search for programs you may use to find funding, experience, or knowledge. For maximum efficacy and efficiency, InfoEd Global has designed SPIN to allow users to utilize both a basic and an advanced search technique.

Both techniques search the system using a full-text search engine. A full-text search engine scans all the words in the SPIN system that match the search criteria, pulling back as many results as possible. This search is run against the entirety of the SPIN record including all SPIN fields such as Sponsor Name, Opportunity Title, Funding Amount, Keywords, etc.



4.1 Basic Search

The Basic search is a way to search for programs using a simple word or term which is then run against the entire SPIN record – every field is searched (ex. Sponsor name, Opportunity Title, Funding Opportunity Number, CFDA Number, Synopsis, Eligibility, Keywords, etc.). This method is very straight forward and provides the most results with the widest range.

'BASIC' is the Search Mode system default which appears when the SPIN Main Screen is first opened and/or refreshed. When Basic search mode is selected (Figure 15), a standard entry textbox appears under the Search Mode blender button where the user can enter their search terms to perform a simple SPIN search.

The progressive text feature is available in the search field for the Basic search. When a user types in words in the free text box, the word is saved and will display next time you are searching.

When you come back and begin typing a similar word, the system will predict what word you are searching for (if you've previously searched for terms starting with the same letter).

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 33 of 144



Figure 15 Basic Search

d spin.						Je	ss Gorman Info	Ed Global
			Category Filters 👻	Search Options 👻	Searches 🔻	Bookmarks 👻	Funding Guides	s 👻 Keywo
Search mode:	BASIC							
frogs						XSearch	?	
Results Found: 3				Applicant Location P	roject Location	Citizenship Statu	s Clear Filters	Export 👻
Drag a column hea	der and drop it here to group by that column							
SPIN ID	Opportunity Title	Sponsor Name	т	Sponsor Number	T Deadline Da	te 🝸 Funding	Amount* 🝸 Bo	okmark
• 03757	Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Fund	U.S. Fish & Wildlife of the Interior	Service/Department	F12AS00005	01-Apr-2012	0.00 US	.	+
+ 12958	Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline	U.S. Fish & Wildlife of the Interior	Service/Department	F12AS00057	01-May-2012	250,000	00 USD	+
+ 39381	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)	National Institute or Abuse/NIH/DHHS	Drug	PA-11-027	07-Jan-2014	0.00 US		+
S R 4 1	10 🔻 🕨 H						Displaying iten	ns 1 - 3 of 3
* Daily conversion rates provided by XE.com. <u>Terms of Use</u> .							ns of Use.	info

	-
(Search Term Text Box)	You may type your search terms in this blank text box. In the above figure, the user has typed in 'frogs'.
	When you are finished, press the Search button located to the right of the box. If you press the X located in the far right portion of the box, the text you typed will be deleted, leaving the box empty.
Search Search	After you've typed a search term in the text box, press this button to initialize the search for the specific term (s).

4.1.1 Performing A Basic Search

To begin, type the word or phrase you're searching for in the search text box and click on the Search button.

In Figure 16, we have entered 'frogs' as our search criteria and have clicked the Search button.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 34 of 144



Figure 16 Performing a Basic Search

				Category Filters	Options	Searches 💌 B	ookmarks 🔻 🛛 Funding G	uides 🔻 Key
Sear	ch mode: 📑							
frogs	3					×	Search 📄 ?	
Resul	ts Found: 4					Searc	h Options Clear Filters	Export 🚽
Drag	a column head	ler and drop it here to group by that column						
	SPIN ID T	Opportunity Title	Sponsor Name	T Sp	oonsor Number	Deadline Date	▼ Funding Amount* ▼	Bookmark
٠	03571	Research Grants	Queensland Frog Society			17-Feb-2012	1,028.50 USD	+
٠	03757	Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Fund	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service of the Interior	/Department F1	12AS00005	01-Apr-2012	0.00 USD	•
٠	12958	Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service of the Interior	/Department F1	2AS00057	01-May-2012	250,000.00 USD	+
٠	39381	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)	National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS	PA	A-11-027	07-Jan-2014	0.00 USD	+
5	R ← 1	10 👻 🕨 🗵					Displaying	g items 1 - 4 of 4

Once the Search button is clicked, the screen will refresh displaying the applicable search results.

Please Note	The Results Returned section is very comprehensive and its various components and functionality will be discussed in more detail in Section 4.1.3, Results Returned.
----------------	--

4.1.2 Saving Your Search Criteria

After you've typed a search term in the text box, you may save your search criteria by clicking on the Save icon.

Save	When clicked, this icon launches the Save Current Criteria popup
B	window (Figure 17) allowing you to save the current search criteria for future use.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 35 of 144



Figure 17 Save Current Criteria Popup

	N"							Cas	sandra N	lorrissey InfoEd Int	ernational, Inc.	<u>Siqn</u>
					Category Filt	ers 🔻 O	ptions 👻	Searches 👻	Bookma	arks 🔻 Funding G	uides 🔻 Key	words
Searc	ch mode: BA	ASIC										
frogs	3								×	Search 💾 ?		
Result	ts Found: 4		Save Cu	rrent Criteria		×		Se	arch Opti	ons Clear Filters	Export 🗸	
Drag	a column heade	r and drop it here to group by that column				_						
	SPIN ID T	Opportunity Title	Name			•	ımber 🏻	Deadline Da	te 🍸 F	unding Amount* 🛛	Bookmark	
	03571	Research Grants		Sa	we Changes	Cancel		17-Feb-2012	2 1	1,031.66 USD	+	
۰	03757	Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Fund		of the Interior		1 1200000	5	01-Apr-2012	0	0.00 USD	+	
٠	12958	Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline		U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service of the Interior	I.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department f the Interior		F12AS00057		2	250,000.00 USD	+	
	39381	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)	And	National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS		PA-11-027		07-Jan-2014		0.00 USD	+	
S	i i 1									Displayin	g items 1 - 4 of 4	ŧ.



On this popup, you may enter a new title or choose one from the previously saved list (by clicking the button).

Once you are finished, you can click either the Save Changes button or the Cancel button. If you select to Save Changes, the Save Current Criteria popup window will close and the search term(s) you just saved will be available when you click **Searches > Saved Searches**.

If you select to click Cancel, the Save Current Criteria popup window will close and the search term(s) will not be saved.

4.1.3 Results Returned

Once the user enters their search criteria in the (BASIC) search text box and the

Search button is clicked, the screen will refresh displaying a grid containing the applicable search results. We call this the Results Returned section.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 36 of 144


Figure 18 Results Returned Section

frogs	;							×		Search 📄 ?			
Resul	Results Found: 4 Search Options Clear Filters												
Drag a column header and drop it here to group by that column													
	SPIN ID	۲	Opportunity Title	۳	Sponsor Name	Sponsor Number 1	T I	Deadline Date	T	Funding Amount*	Bookmark		
*	03571		Research Grants		Queensland Frog Society		•	17-Feb-2012		1,028.50 USD	+		
+	03757		Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Fund		U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00005	(01-Apr-2012		0.00 USD	+		
٠	12958		Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline		U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00057	(01-May-2012		250,000.00 USD	+		
٠	39381		The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)		National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS	PA-11-027	(07-Jan-2014		0.00 USD	+		
\$. i	10	0 v • •							Displayin	g items 1 - 4 of 4		

Located above the top right section of the results returned section are the various types of Categories you may use to filter your search (Figure 19). These categories are derived from information in the Category Filters section of the SPIN system (see Section 4.3, Category Filters).

Please Note	There are five possible Category Filters; Applicant Location, Applicant Type, Project Type, Project Location and Citizenship Status.
	Please note that the horizontal list of category filters only displays those categories that have anything set.
	As a result, in Figure 19 below there are only two Category Filters shown in the horizontal Category list (Applicant Location and Citizenship Status) because those are the only category filters that the user has entered and saved criteria in.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 37 of 144







These are the same filters that appear in the drop-down menu if you hover your cursor over Category Filters in the yellow tool bar.

If the words are bold, the specific filter has been used within the search (in this case, Applicant Type was used as a filter). Although you may not click on these specific terms, they give you insight into whether you're receiving ALL of the results, or only a portion of them.

For more information on working with category filters, please continue on to Section 4.3, Category Filters.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 38 of 144 Below the category filters list are multiple columns containing result information listed in individual columns:

SPIN ID	This is the InfoEd-generated SPIN ID number used to identify the program.
Opportunity Title	This is the sponsor-designated name for the opportunity.
Sponsor Name	This is the name of the agency/organization sponsoring the opportunity.
Sponsor Number	This is the number assigned to the opportunity by the sponsor. Not all opportunities have been given a Sponsor Number.
Deadline Date	This is the deadline date designating when the applicant must apply for this opportunity. For opportunities with multiple deadline dates, this is the date furthest in the future.
Funding Amount	This is the monetary valuation converted to the user's selected currency type that is found within Search Options.

4.1.4 Navigating Through the Results Returned

In enhancing the SPIN system, InfoEd Global wanted the new user interface to be as intuitive and easy-to-use as possible. As a result, there are several features added to the Results Returned section to maximize user-friendliness, especially when viewing an expansive number of search results.

These features incorporate the inclusion of:

- A Results Returned Program Count (Section 4.1.4.1);
- A Results Returned Display Counter (Section 4.1.4.2); and
- A Results Returned Page Counter/Navigation Bar (Section 4.1.4.3).



4.1.4.1 Results Returned Program Count

Just above the top left corner of the Results Returned section there is a display-only count of programs returned for the current search (see Figure 20).

Figure 20 Results Returned Program Count

SPIN							c	Cassandra	Morrissey InfoEd I	nternational, Inc.			
					Category Filte	ers • Options •	Searches 🔻	Bookn	narks 👻 Funding	Guides 👻 Keyv			
Search	h mode: 🛛 🖪	ASIC											
transp	ortation							×	Search 📑 ?				
										Export			
Results	Found: 938	er and drop it here to group by that col	umn					Search Op	ptions Clear Filters	and and a			
	SPIN ID T	Opportunity Title	т	Sponsor Name	т	Sponsor Number	T Deadline	Date T	Funding Amount*	T Bookmark			
-	25765	NCHRP Request for Proposal - Man Transportation Emergencies: A Guid	aging Catastrophic de for Transportation Executives	Transportation Resea	rch Board	NCHRP 20-59(36) [RFP]	21-Dec-20	011	100,000.00 USD	+			
	Contact N	ame	Stephan A. Parker										
	Contact Te	lephone	202-334-2554	202-334-2554									
	Contact E	mail	saparker@nas.edu	aparker@nas.edu									
	Sponsor V	Vebsite	http://www.trb.org/Projects/Re	v//www.trb.org/Projects/RequestsforProposals.aspx									
	Program L	JRL	http://apps.trb.org/cmsfeed/T	p://apps.trb.org/cmsfeed/TRBNetProjectDisplay.asp?ProjectID=2910									
	Deadline I	Dates (ALL)	21-Dec-2011	21-Dec-2011									
			The objective of this research is to develop a Guide for preparing transportation agency executives and senior leaders for their roles and decision points										

In Figure 20, the user searched for 'transportation' programs and as a result, 938 opportunities were found. In this example, the Results Returned Program Count reads '*Results Found: 938*'.

This field is a system-generated field and is never editable.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 40 of 144

4.1.4.2 Results Returned Display Counter

Some searches may bring back large numbers of programs yet the Results Returned section can only display a small number of programs at once. As a result, InfoEd has included a display counter (Figure 21) at the bottom right of the Results Returned section so the user can see what series of programs are currently in view.

SPINID T	Opportunity Title	Sponsor Name 🛛 🔭 🕇	Sponsor Number 🛛 🕇	Deadline Date T	Funding Amount* T	Bookmark
25765	NCHRP Request for Proposal - Managing Catastrophic Transportation Emergencies: A Guide for Transportation Executives	Transportation Research Board	NCHRP 20-59(36) [RFP]	21-Dec-2011	100,000.00 USD	+
25701	Enhance Awareness of Transportation and Transportation Careers	Federal Highway Administration	DTFH61-12-RA-00004	10-Dec-2011	200,000.00 USD	+
67956	Globe Award Program	American Road & Transportation Builders Assn. Transportation Dev. Fndn.		23-Mar-2012	0.00 USD	•
99107	Scholarships for Graduate Study in Transportation	Canadian Transportation Research Forum		31-Dec-2011	5,980.85 USD	+
27805	RFP-Proof-of-Concept Application of Geospatial Ecological Tools and Data in the Planning and Programming (pre-NEPA) Phases of Delivering New Highway Capacity	Transportation Research Board	SHRP2_C40-B	01-May-2012	0.00 USD	+
27806	RFPIntegration of National-Level Geospatial, Ecological Tools and Dat	Transportation Research Board	SHRP2_C40-A	01-May-2012	0.00 USD	+
14107	TSL Best Paper Award	INFORMS Online		01-Jul-2012	800.00 USD	+
25327	NCHRP Request for Proposal - Economic Productivity and Transportation Investment Priorities	Transportation Research Board	NCHRP 02-24	06-Dec-2011	350,000.00 USD	+
27599	Space Transportation Infrastructure Matching Grants Program	Federal Aviation Administration		11-May-2012	0.00 USD	+
25985	NCHRP Request for Proposal - Future of Transportation Planning in State DOTs	Transportation Research Board	08-36/Task 113 [RFP]	11-Jan-2012	250,000.00 USD	+
	SPIN ID T 25765 25701 67956 29107 27805 27806 14107 25327 27599 25985	SPIN ID T Opportunity Title T 25765 NCHRP Request for Proposal - Managing Catastrophic Transportation Emergencies: A Guide for Transportation Executives 25701 Enhance Awareness of Transportation and Transportation Executives 25703 Globe Award Program 99107 Scholarships for Graduate Study in Transportation 27806 RFP-Proof-of-Concept Application of Geospatial Ecological Tools and Data in the Planning and Programming (pre-NEPA) Phases of Delivering New Highwar Capacity 27806 RFP-Integration of National-Level Geospatial. Ecological Tools and Dat 14107 TSL Best Paper Award 25327 NCHRP Request for Proposal - Economic Productivity and Transportation Investment Priorities 27896 Space Transportation Infrastructure Matching Grants Program 25985 Scher DOrs	SPINID T Opportunity Title T Sponsor Name T 25765 NCHRP Request for Proposal - Managing Catastrophic Transportation Exercitives Transportation Research Board Transportation Research Board 25701 Enhance Awareness of Transportation and Transportation Careers Federal Highway Administration 67956 Globe Award Program American Road & Transportation Dev. Fndn. 67957 Scholarships for Graduate Study in Transportation Canadian Transportation Dev. Fndn. 99107 Scholarships for Graduate Study in Transportation Delivering Proposed - Concept Application of Geospatial Ecological Tools and Data in the Flanning and Programming (pre-NEPA) Phases of Delivering New Hohway Capacity Transportation Research Board 27806 REPIntegration of National-Level Geospatial Ecological Tools and Dat Transportation Research Board 14107 TSL Best Paper Award INFORMS Online Transportation Research Board 25327 Scace Transportation Intrastructure Matching Grants Program Federal Aviation Administration 25985 Scace Transportation Intrastructure Matching Grants Program Federal Aviation Administration	SPIN ID T Opponunty Thie T Sponsor Number T 25765 NCHRP Request for Proposal - Managing Catastrophic Transportation Emergencies: A Guide for Transportation Executives: Transportation Research Board NCHRP 20-59(3) [RFP] 25701 Enhance Awareness of Transportation and Transportation Catestrophic Transportation Research Board DTHH61-12-RA-00004 67956 Globe Award Program Federal Highway Administration Builders Assn. Transportation Dev. Fndn. Canadian Transportation Dev. Fndn. 99107 Scholarships for Graduate Study in Transportation Delivering American Research Delivering New Highwar Capacity Stransportation Research Forum SHRP2_C40-B 27806 RFP-Proof-of-Concept Application of Geospatial Ecological Tools and Data in the Planning and Programming (pre-NEPA) Phases of Delivering New Highwar Capacity Transportation Research Board SHRP2_C40-B 27806 RFP-Integration of National-Level Geospatial Ecological Tools and Dat Transportation Research Board SHRP2_C40-A 14107 TSL Best Paper Award NCHRP Request for Proposal - Economic Productivity and Transportation Research Board NCHRP 02-24 25327 NCHRP Request for Proposal - Economic Program Federal Aviation Administration NCHRP Request for Proposal - Economic Program 25985	SPIN ID T Opport Number T Sponsor Number T Deadline Date T 25765 NCHRP Request for Proposal - Managing Catastrophic Transportation Emergencies: A Guide for Transportation Executives 25701 Transportation Research Board NCHRP 20-59(3) [RFP] 21-Dec-2011 2 25701 Enhance Awareness of Transportation and Transportation Catestrophic Transportation Builders Assn. Transportation Builders Assn. Transportation Dev. Fndn. DTFH61-12-RA-00004 10-Dec-2011 2 67956 Globe Award Program Canadian Transportation Dev. Fndn. Canadian Transportation Dev. Fndn. Scholarships for Graduate Study in Transportation Builders Assn. Transportation Dev. Fndn. SHRP2_C40-B 31-Dec-2011 2 27806 RFP-Proof-of-Concept Application of Geospatial Ecological Tools and Data in the Planning and Programming (pre-NEPA) Phases of Determing New Highwar Capacity Transportation Research Board SHRP2_C40-B 01-May-2012 27806 RFP-Integration of National-Level Geospatial Ecological Tools and Data in the Planning and Programming (pre-NEPA) Phases of Dateming New Highwar Capacity Transportation Research Board SHRP2_C40-A 01-May-2012 27806 RFP-Integration of National-Level Geospatial Ecological Tools and Dat Transportation Research Board NCHRP Request for Proposal - Econ	SPIN D Copport Number Copport Number Copport Number Composition Data Composit Data Co

Figure 21 Results Returned Display Counter

In the above example, the Results Returned Display Counter informs the user that they are currently viewing programs 1 through 10 out of the total 938 programs retrieved.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 41 of 144

4.1.4.3 Results Returned Page Counter/Navigation Bar

Again, when a larger number of search results are retrieved, many pages of Results Returned programs are generated by the system. InfoEd Global has included a page counter/navigation bar $(1) \rightarrow 1$ (Figure 22) at the bottom left of the Results Returned section to allow the user to more efficiently page through the resulting programs.

Figure 22 Results Returned Page Counter/Navigation Bar

	SPIN ID T	Opportunity Title	Sponsor Name 🛛 🔭 🕇	Sponsor Number T	Deadline Date T	Funding Amount* T	Bookman
	25765	NCHRP Request for Proposal - Managing Catastrophic Transportation Emergencies: A Guide for Transportation Executives	Transportation Research Board	NCHRP 20-59(36) [RFP]	21-Dec-2011	100,000.00 USD	+
1 3	25701	Enhance Awareness of Transportation and Transportation Careers	Federal Highway Administration	DTFH61-12-RA-00004	10-Dec-2011	200,000.00 USD	+
	67956	Globe Award Program	American Road & Transportation Builders Assn. Transportation Dev. Fndn.		23-Mar-2012	0.00 USD	+
1	99107	Scholarships for Graduate Study in Transportation	Canadian Transportation Research Forum		31-Dec-2011	5,980.85 USD	+
3	27805	RFPProof-of-Concept Application of Geospatial Ecological Tools and Data in the Planning and Programming (pre-NEPA) Phases of Delivering New Highway Capacity	Transportation Research Board	SHRP2_C40-B	01-May-2012	0.00 USD	*
	27806	RFPIntegration of National-Level Geospatial, Ecological Tools and Dat	Transportation Research Board	SHRP2_C40-A	01-May-2012	0.00 USD	+
	14107	TSL Best Paper Award	INFORMS Online		01-Jul-2012	800.00 USD	+
1	25327	NCHRP Request for Proposal - Economic Productivity and Transportation Investment Priorities	Transportation Research Board	NCHRP 02-24	06-Dec-2011	350,000.00 USD	•
8	27599	Space Transportation Infrastructure Matching Grants Program	Federal Aviation Administration		11-May-2012	0.00 USD	+
4	25985	NCHRP Request for Proposal - Future of Transportation Planning in State DOTs	Transportation Research Board	08-36/Task 113 [RFP]	11-Jan-2012	250,000.00 USD	•

The page counter/navigation bar will have a varied appearance depending upon how many pages of results are returned.

In the above depiction (Figure 22), there were 938 results found and pages 1 through 10 have been listed along with '...' which intimates that there are more pages after the ten listed.

This button is typically known as the Home button. In the list of pages, when a user clicks on this button, they will be transported back to the very first page of programs, regardless of where in the sequential list of pages they may currently be.
For example, if the user is currently on page 21 of the search results and they click this button, they will be brought back to page 1.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 42 of 144



•	This button is typically referred to as the Back button. In the list of pages, when a user clicks on this button, they will be transported back one page. For example, if the user is currently on page 21 of the search results and they click this button, they will be brought back to page 20.
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	This part of the bar lists the page number(s) of search results in the Results Returned section. The initial view upon search generation will include numbers 1 through 10 (if applicable). If there are more than 10 pages of programs, '' will follow the 10, signifying that there are more pages available for viewing.
	To access a specific page, the user will simply click upon the page number. In the bar shown here, the user has selected to view the second page of programs, hence the 2 is highlighted in white, informing the user that they are currently viewing page 2 of the search results.
	If the user would like to jump to a page beyond page 10, they would simply click on the '' and then next ten pages (if applicable) will be listed (11 to 20 then 21 to 30) and so on.
10 -	If you would like to view more results on a single page, use the ¹⁰ vicon to pick how many programs to display on each page. The options are 10, 25, 50 or 100 programs.
•	This button is typically referred to as the Forward button. In the list of pages, when a user clicks on this button, they will be transported forward one page.
	For example, if the user is currently on page 21 of the search results and they click this button, they will be brought forward to page 22.
M	This button is typically known as the End button. In the list of pages, when a user clicks on this button, they will be transported back to the last page of programs, regardless of where in the sequential list of pages they may currently be.
	For example, if there are 30 pages total and the user is currently on page 21 of the search results and they click this button, they will be brought forward to the last page, page 30.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 43 of 144



To change pages, press any of the arrows in the bar or click on the number of the page you wish to view. In this case (Figure 22) there are more than ten pages <u>of</u> returned

results, so only the first ten pages are listed and the user must utilize the entry or the arrow buttons to navigate to the desired page number.

Finally, if you would like to view more results on a single page, use the 10 ricon to select how many programs you'd like to display on each page.

4.1.5 Sorting Search Results

In the new SPIN system, there are several different ways that the user can sort the results returned to further customize the search view:

- 1. Modify the Order of the Columns, see Section 4.1.5.1
- 2. Group Opportunities By Column, see Section 4.1.5.2
- 3. Sort Results Using The Column Header, see Section 4.1.5.3

4.1.5.1 Modifying the Order of the Columns

You may modify the order of the columns by clicking on the specific column you wish to change and then dragging it horizontally to the new location. This helps you place column(s) you find more valuable into a more-desired location(s).

For Example	Perhaps a user is searching for programs based on the Opportunity Title, and they'd like to see that column first on their Results Returned list.
	No problem! The user will simply click on the Opportunity Title column and then using their mouse, they will drag the selected column to a new location in the grid (see Figure 23).



Figure 23 Modifying the Order of the Columns

ogs					×	Search 💾 ?	
sult	s Found: 3			Applicant Location Proje	ct Location Citizen	ship Status Clear Filte	ers Export
ag	a column he	ader and drop it here to group by that column					
	SPIN ID	T Opportunity Title T	Sponsor Name T	Sponsor Number T	Deadline Date T	Funding Amount* T	Bookmark
6	03757	Ife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Inservation Fund	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00005	01-Apr-2012	0.00 USD	•
i.	12958	Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00057	01-May-2012	250,000.00 USD	•
	39381	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles in Drug Abure (Rol1)	National Institute on Drug	PA-11-027	07-Jan-2014	0.00 USD	+

In the figure above (Figure 23), Opportunity Title is the second column in the table and SPIN ID is the first. In the illustration the user has clicked on the Opportunity Title Column Header and is dragging it to the left to reside before the SPIN ID column.

Once the user has clicked on the column they wish to relocate and used the mouse to drag it to the desired position, the table will change to reflect the new sequence of the columns (Figure 24).

Fiaure 24	Modifying the Order of the Columns – The Results

Result	Results Found: 4												
Drag	Drag a column header and drop it here to group by that column												
	Opportunity Title	T	SPIN ID	۳	Sponsor Name	T 8	Sponsor Number	٣	Deadline Date	٣	Funding Amount*	Bookmark	
٠	Research Grants		03571		Queensland Frog Society				17-Feb-2012		1,034.63 USD	+	
٠	Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Fund		03757		U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Departmen of the Interior	nt F	F12AS00005		01-Apr-2012		0.00 USD	+	
÷	Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline		12958		U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Departmen of the Interior	nt F	F12AS00057		01-May-2012		250,000.00 USD	+	
٠	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)		39381		National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS	F	PA-11-027		07-Jan-2014		0.00 USD	+	
S	K ∢ 1 10 ▼ > >										Displaying	items 1 - 4 of 4	

As a result, this illustration shows that now Opportunity Title is the first column and SPIN ID is now second.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 45 of 144



You can also group by the columns by clicking on a specific column you wish to group and dragging it vertically to place it in the top row (the space above the columns that says 'Drag a column header and drop it here to group by that column').

You may place as many columns as you wish in this top row. This allows you to organize the results into a customized list; placing what you find most useful first.

If you no longer wish to group by the selected columns, either press the X next to each grouped Column Header or re-drag the Column back to the regular search results list.

For Example	Perhaps a user is searching for programs based on the Opportunity Title, Sponsor Name and Funding Amount, and they'd like to group the search results on their Results Returned list by these columns.
	No problem! The user will simply click on each of the desired column(s) and then using their mouse, they will drag the selected column to the top header row of the Results Returned table (see Figure 25).

Figure 25 Grouping by the Columns

🔺 Opportunity Title 🗙 🔺 Sponsor	r Name 🗙 🔺 Funding Amount* 🗙					
SPIN ID 🝸	Opportunity Title	T Sponsor Name	T Sponsor Number	T Deadline Date	T Funding Amount*	T Bookmark
 v Opportunity Title: The Developm 	nent Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their	Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)				
– 🗸 Sponsor Name: National	Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS					
− ∨ Funding Amount *: 0	.00					
· 39381	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)	National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS	PA-11-027	07-Jan-2014	0.00 USD	+
 Opportunity Title: Wildlife Without 	ut Borders Amphibians in Decline					
– 🗸 Sponsor Name: U.S. Fish	& Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior					
− ∨ Funding Amount *: 2	250,000.00					
• 12958	Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00057	01-May-2012	250,000.00 USD	+
- V Opportunity Title: Wildlife Witho	ut Borders Critically Endancered Animals Conserva	tion Fund				
				Internet P	otected Mode: On	

In the figure above (Figure 25), Opportunity Title, Sponsor Name and Funding Amount columns have been dragged up to the top header of the Results Returned table.

Once the user has dragged the column(s) they wish to group the search results by, the Results Returned table will change to reflect the new column grouping (Figure 26).

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 46 of 144



Figure 26 Grouping by the Columns – The Results

sults F	ound: 3				Applicant Location	Project Location Citize	enship Status Clear Filte	rs Export
• Oppo	ortunity T	Title × 🔺	Sponsor Name 🗙					
		SPIN ID	▼ Opportunity Title	Y Sponsor Name	T Sponsor Number	T Deadline Date	T Funding Amount* T	Bookmark
√ Op	portunit	ty Title: The C	Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And	Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)				
-	√ Spor	nsor Name: I	National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS					
	+	39381	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic Sys And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)	stem National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS	PA-11-027	07-Jan-2014	0.00 USD	+
v Op	portunit	ty Title: Wildl	ife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline					
-	v Spor	nsor Name: I	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior -					
	*	12958	Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the In	F12AS00057	01-May-2012	250,000.00 USD	+
v Op	portunit	ty Title: Wildl	ife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Con	servation Fund				
-	∽ Spor	nsor Name: I	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior -					
			under und La Briaria Gineral, Brazilia and	the researching				

As a result, this illustration shows that now the search results are grouped by Opportunity Title and Sponsor Name.

4.1.5.3 Sort Results Using The Column Header(s)

Finally, you may adjust how the results are sorted by clicking on the title in the column header. When you click on the column title, the field is lightened in color and the column title will be turned into a button with an up arrow appearing next to the column title

By default, depending on what column you are using to adjust, the newest, smallest, or first alphabetically will appear.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 47 of 144

For Example	Perhaps a user is searching for programs based on the Opportunity Title, and they'd like to sort all of the results to display in alphabetical order
	No problem! The user will simply click on the Opportunity Title column and the results will be sorted alphabetically from A to Z (see Figure 27).
	Consequentially, if you're sorting using SPIN ID, the numbers will be sorted sequentially starting with 00000 and ending with 99999.
	If you're sorting using Sponsor Name, names that begin with A will be first, Z will be last.
	If you're sorting using Deadline Date, the newest dates will appear first. So sequentially, May 10, 2012 will appear before April 10, 2012.
	Clicking the icon next to the Column Title reverses the order. So if you're sorting by Sponsor Name and click the column header, the results will be reverse-sorted starting from Z to A, not the standard A-to Z.

Figure 27 Sort Results Using the Column Header(s)

Result	s Found: 4						Export 👻
Drag a	a column heade	er and drop it here to group by that column					
	SPIN ID T	Opportunity Title 🗠 🛛 🔻 🕇	Sponsor Name T	Sponsor Number 🛛 🕇	Deadline Date 🛛 🕇	Funding Amount* 🗡	Bookmark
*	03571	Research Grants	Queensland Frog Society		17-Feb-2012	1,034.63 USD	+
٠	39381	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)	National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS	PA-11-027	07-Jan-2014	0.00 USD	+
+	12958	Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00057	01-May-2012	250,000.00 USD	+
±	03757	Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Fund	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00005	01-Apr-2012	0.00 USD	+
S	IA A 1 1	0 - • •				Displaying	items 1 - 4 of 4

In the figure above (Figure 27), the user has clicked on the Column Title and the up arrow has appeared signifying that the Column Title is now a sorting button and the search results have been sorted. In the illustration above, the results have been sorted by Opportunity Title; you will notice the results are listed alphabetically from A to Z.

If you'd like to reverse the alphabetical list, clicking the column header itself or the icon next to the Column Title reverses the order. So if you're sorting by Opportunity Title and click the column header, the results will be reverse-sorted starting from Z to A, not the standard A-to Z.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 48 of 144



Figure 28 Sort Results Using the Column Header(s) – Reverse Order

Resu	ts Found: 4						Export 🚽
Drag	a column head	er and drop it here to group by that column					
	SPIN ID T	Opportunity Title 🗟 🔭 🕇	Sponsor Name 🌱 🍸	Sponsor Number 🛛 🕇	Deadline Date 🛛 🕇	Funding Amount*	Bookmark
٠	03757	Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Fund	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00005	01-Apr-2012	0.00 USD	+
٠	12958	Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00057	01-May-2012	250,000.00 USD	+
٠	39381	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)	National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS	PA-11-027	07-Jan-2014	0.00 USD	+
٠	03571	Research Grants	Queensland Frog Society		17-Feb-2012	1,034.63 USD	+
5	H 4 1 1	0 - H				Displaying	; items 1 - 4 of 4

As a result, this illustration shows that now the search results are sorted by Opportunity Title in reverse alphabetical order

4.1.6 Filtering Search Results

Another option is to filter the search results. Filtering allows you to choose from specific fields to organization the information. With the exception of the Bookmark section, every column may be filtered. Depending on what column you're trying to filter, you may sort using: the name, what the name contains, or specific dates.

Click the **T** button next to the specific category you are filtering. Using the drop down menu (Figure 29), choose the filter, specify what you're filtering and click Filter. The results list will refresh according to your decision, displaying the new information.

Figure 29

Filtering Search Results

	SPIN ID T	Opportunity Title	T Sponsor Name
+	03571	Research Grants	T Clear Filter
÷	03757	Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Fund	Contains
+	12958	Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline	animals And
+	39381	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)	Is equal to Is equal to Is not equal to
G	₩ 4 1 1	0 - >>	Starts with Contains Ends with

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 49 of 144



Clear Filter Clear Filter	When pressed this button will initiate a refresh of the following filter fields, allowing the user to start this filtering process anew.
Show rows with value that Show rows with value that	This is a standard textual title which is a descriptor for the first set of filter fields (the filter-value drop-down and the search text box).
(Filter Value #1) Is equal to Is not equal to Starts with Contains Ends with	This is a drop-down list where the user can designate the following search criteria as Is Equal to, Is not equal to, Starts with, Contains, Or Ends with the value entered in the text box below.
(Filter Search Text Box #1)	A blank text box for the user to enter in their first search term.
AND	This is a standard textual title which designates that the first and second filter values are mutually inclusive.
(Filter Value #2) Is equal to Is not equal to Starts with Contains Ends with	A blank text box for the user to enter in their second search term.
(Filter Search Text Box #2)	This is a drop-down list where the user can designate the following search criteria as Is Equal to, Is not equal to, Starts with, Contains, Or Ends with the value entered in the text box below.
Filter T Filter	When pressed, this button will initiate the filtering of the search results to only include the opportunities that are applicable to the selections made in the Filter fields entered by the user.

SPIN USER GUIDE, *VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc.* Page 50 of 144



4.1.7 Viewing The Program Details

Searching for and finding the title, sponsor name/number, deadline date and funding amount of desired program(s) is great but sometimes a user may want to get a more indepth look at an individual opportunity or set of opportunities.

That's where the Program Details checkbox and the Program Plus/Minus button located in the left-most column of the Results Returned section come in...



Figure 30 Program Details Checkbox & Plus/Minus Button

(Program Details Checkbox)	When checked, every program on the screen that is set to Plus will expand, displaying the contact name, email, sponsor website, and synopsis of the program.
	When a search is first performed, the Results Returned section has this checkbox defaulted to unchecked with all of the Plus/Minus buttons for each of the program(s) in the results set to Plus
	When this checkbox is unchecked by the user, every program on the screen that is set to Minus will shrink down to display the standard fields: SPIN ID, Opportunity Title, Sponsor Name, Sponsor Number, Deadline Date and Funding Amount.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 51 of 144



(Program Expand/Collapse Button)	When a search is first performed, this button is defaulted to Expand $\stackrel{\frown}{=}$ for all of the programs in the results set.
- +	A [±] denotes that the select program is in 'standard display mode', ready to be expanded. The fields displayed for these programs are: SPIN ID, Opportunity Title, Sponsor Name, Sponsor Number, Deadline Date and Funding Amount.
	To expand an individual program, a user can click on the \pm button for that specific program.
	A Collapse button denotes that the select program is in 'expanded display mode', ready to return back to the 'standard display mode'. The fields displayed for these programs are: Contact Name, Contact Telephone, Contact Email, Sponsor Website, Program URL, Deadline Dates, and a Synopsis of the Program.
	To minimize an individual program, a user can click on the button for that specific program.

When a user enters their search criteria and the search is first generated, the Results Returned section appears with this checkbox defaulted to unchecked and the

Expand/Collapse button for all of the resulting program(s) set to Expand ¹/₁ which is the default view (see Figure 30).

Figure 31	View Program Details –	Default View

ag a	d in head	er and drop it here to group by that column					
3	SPIN ID T	Opportunity Title	Sponsor Name 🏾 🔭	Sponsor Number T	Deadline Date 🗡	Funding Amount* T	Bookmark
i.	03571	Research Grants	Queensland Frog Society		17-Feb-2012	1,028.50 USD	+
a.	03757	Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Fund	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00005	01-Apr-2012	0.00 USD	+
i.	12958	Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00057	01-May-2012	250,000.00 USD	+
	39381	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)	National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS	PA-11-027	07-Jan-2014	0.00 USD	

When the Program Details checkbox \square is checked by the user, every program in the Results Returned section (seen and unseen) that is set to \square will expand.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 52 of 144



To expand an individual program, a user can click on the \pm button for that specific program (Figure 32).

Figure 32 Expand Program Details



Once the program(s) display has expanded to include the Contact Name, Contact Telephone, Contact Email, Sponsor Website, Program URL, Deadline Dates, and a Synopsis of the Program, the Plus/Minus button for each of the expanded programs will be set to (see Figure 33).



)rag a	a column heater and drop i	t here to group by that o	olumn				
2	SPIN ID	Opportunity Title 🍸	Sponsor Name 🛛 🕇	Sponsor Number 🛛 🕇	Deadline Date	▼ Funding Amount *	T Bookmark
ш.	03571	Research Grants	Queensland Frog Society		17-Feb-2012	1,028.50 USD	
	Contact Name						
	Contact Telephone						
	Contact Email		gldfrogs@bigpo	nd.net.au			
	Sponsor Website		http://www.gldfro	<u>qs.asn.au</u>			
	Program URL		http://www.gldfro	gs.asn.au/01 cms/deta	ils.asp?ID=73		
	Deadline Dates (ALL)		17-Feb-2012				
	Synopsis		The sponsor will	l provide one research g	rant of \$1,000 each for research into	Queensland's frogs.	
	03757	Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Fund	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00005	01-Apr-2012	0.00 USD	•
	Contact Name		Corinn Mauldin				

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 53 of 144



4.1.8 Minimizing The Program Details

A minimized view of the returned result opportunities is also referred to as the default view.

Once the user has selected to view the program details for the resulting opportunities

(see Figure 33), they must uncheck the Program Details checkbox \square if they would like to minimize the program details and return to the original view for any programs set to Minus \square (Figure 31).

To minimize an individual program, a user can click on the button for that specific program (Figure 34).

Figure 34 Minimize Program Details



4.1.8.1 Program Details Refresh Button

Just as you can select the SPIN Logo Icon on the SPIN Main Screen at anytime to refresh the screen, there is a similar function available for the Results Returned Section for refreshing this program details functionality.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 54 of 144



If you would like to refresh the Program Details checkbox and Plus/Minus buttons to the default view (Figure 35) you can press the Refresh icon which will uncheck the checkbox and set all programs to the standard display mode, set to Plus .

 Figure 35
 Program Details Refresh

 Results Found: 4

 Drag a column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program betails column header and drop it here to group by

 Image: Original program header and drop i

Wildlife Without Borders Amp

The Development Of Frontal

Their Roles In Drug Abuse (F

Opportunity Title Link

10 🔻 🕨 M

4.1.9 View More Detailed Opportunity Information

To view more detailed information of a specific program, click the Opportunity title link located next to the SPIN ID number (Figure 36).

will be set to Plus.

Posul	Besuits Found 4 Search Ontions Clear Filters Export -						
Drag	Drag a column header and drop it here to group by that column						
	SPIN ID 🛛 🕇	Opportunity Title	Sponsor Name 🛛 🍸	Sponsor Number 💦 🔻 🔻	Deadline Date 🛛 🕇	Funding Amount* 🛛 🕇	Bookmark
÷	03571	Research Grants	Queensland Frog Society		17-Feb-2012	1,037.39 USD	+
×	03757	Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Fund	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00005	01-Apr-2012	0.00 USD	+
٠	12958	Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00057	01-May-2012	250,000.00 USD	+
٠	39381	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)	National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS	PA-11-027	07-Jan-2014	0.00 USD	+
\$	н н 1 1	0 - F				Displaying	items 1 - 4 of 4

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 55 of 144

12958

39381

14

1

 \pm

+

G

Figure 36



This will open the Opportunity Information popup window (Figure 37).

Figure 37 Opportunity Information Popup

in ford SPIN	Jess Gorman InfoEd Global <u>Sign Out</u>	
The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01) Sponsor Name: National Institute on Drug Abuse/INH/DHHS	Email - Options -	
Opportunity Description Eligibility Requirements Funding Guidelines Sponsor Information	+ Bookmark Program	
Synopsis	Funding Opportunity Number: PA- 11-027	
The sponsor invites applications that propose to study the development of the frontal and prefrontal cortices, together with the subcortical areas of the limbic system, that play significant roles in mediating emotional and motivated behavior. This initiative is designed to support the basic neuroscience research into the fundamental mechanisms of development of the frontal and prefrontal cortices, as well as the midbrain and basal forebrain structures that mediate a number of functions related to drug abuse and psychiatric disorders including: the euphoric properties of drugs, actions of psychotherapeutic agents, and memory, cognitive and emotional functions. An additional major goal of this initiative is to understand how exposure to drugs of abuse affects the cellular and molecular mechanisms underlying nervous system development of circuits implicated in drug reward and addiction. This program will use the NIH Research Project (R01) award mechanism.	CFDA Number: 93.279 Deadline Date: 07-Jan-2014 The deadlines for receipt of standard R01 applications under this announcement are: February 5, June 5, and October 5 annually. The deadlines for receipt of AIDS-related applications are: January 7,	
Program Objectives	May 7, and September 7 annually. This program will expire on January 8, 2014.	
This funding opportunity announcement (FOA) encourages research project (R01) grant applications to study the development of the frontal and prefrontal cortices which, together with the subcortical areas of the limbic system, play significant roles in mediating emotional and motivated behavior. The proper development of these forebrain and midbrain regions is essential for formation of the neuronal pathways that mediate a number of important functions, including learning and memory, cognition and decision making, the hedonic properties of food and sex, as well as the rewarding properties of drugs of abuse. Furthermore, the development of these complex neural circuits occurs over a wide developmental period from early embryogenesis through late adolescence. Elucidation of the nulcular and cellular processes underlying the development of these contral areas and the limbic system will provide critical insinity into the adartise processes associated with from addretion as well as insinity into mechanisms that	Deadline Type: Established Date: 26-Feb-1998 Last Revised Date: 19-De6-2011 Next Followup Date: 01-Nov-2012	

This window displays all the information available for the specific opportunity in four distinct tabs and one information box:

- Opportunity Description, Section 4.1.9.1
- Eligibility Requirements, Section 4.1.9.2
- Funding Guidelines, Section 4.1.9.3
- Sponsor Information, Section 4.1.9.4
- Funding Opportunity Number Information Box, Section 4.1.9.5

On this popup, you may:

- Toggle between the four tabs to view detailed information on the program.
- Email the program descriptions (using HTML or text) and/or bookmark the program (see Section 4.6, Bookmarks).
- Look up similar opportunities by clicking **Options > Find Similar Opportunities**. This will begin a search for additional programs using the eligibility and keywords from the original program you were looking at (see Section 4.4, Search Options).



When you're finished, you may close the Additional Search and Opportunity screens; returning you to the original SPIN page.

4.1.9.1 Opportunity Description Tab

The first tab on the Opportunity Information popup window is the Opportunity Description tab (Figure 44).

Figure 38 Opportunity Description Tab

Opportunity Description	Eligibility Requirements	Funding Guidelines	Sponsor Information	
Synopsis				
The sponsor will provide	one research grant of \$1,00	0 each for research into	Queensland's frogs.	
Program Objectives				
The purpose of the grant is to assist research into Queensland's frogs.				
Keywords				
Animals Plant	s Science			

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 57 of 144



The following information is displayed on this tab:

Synopsis	This field is a display-only text box containing the program's synopsis.		
Program Objectives	This field is a display-only text box containing the program's primary objectives/goals.		
Keywords	This field is a display-only text box containing any keywords that the Sponsor designated for the program.		

4.1.9.2 Eligibility Requirements Tab

The second tab on the Opportunity Information popup window is the Eligibility Requirements tab (Figure 44).

Fiaure 39	Eligibility Requirements Tab – Scroll 1
i igui o oo	

Opportunity Description Eligibility Requirements Funding Guidelines Sponsor Information				
Eligibility Requirements				
Applicants must be a resident in Australia. Applicants must be current financial members of the Queensland Frog Society but may not be QFS management committee office bearers. Applicants not enrolled at an educational institution must be able to demonstrate in their application that they have the scientific competence to undertake and complete the proposed research project.				
Applicant Location Requirements				
Australia and New Zealand,				
Applicant Types Eligible				
Researcher or Investigator				
Project Types Supported				
Research Grant				

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 58 of 144



Figure 40Eligibility Requirements Tab – Scroll 2

Project Types Supported
Research Grant
Project Locations Allowed
Citizenship Requirements
Australian
Sponsor's Target Groups

The following information is displayed on this tab:

Eligibility Requirements	This field is a display-only text box containing the eligibility requirements for the program applicant.		
Applicant Location Requirements	This field is a display-only text box containing acceptable geographic location(s) for the program applicant to reside.		
Applicant Types Eligible	This field is a display-only text box containing the type(s) of applicants who are eligible to apply for the program.		
Project Types Supported	This field is a display-only text box containing the project type(s) supported by this program.		
Project Locations Allowed	This field is a display-only text box containing the allowed project location(s) for the program.		
Citizenship Requirements	This field is a display-only text box containing the citizenship requirements that the applicant must satisfy to apply for the program.		

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 59 of 144



Sponsor's Target Groups	This field is a display-only text box containing the primary or exclusive beneficiary group of the work to be done.
	For example, if a grant were being offered for a group to hold workshops that were solely or primarily focused on improving the education of a minority group, that minority group would be the "Target Group" It does not have to do with who is applying, but rather who is benefiting from the work that will be done.
	Said a different way, this field denotes the primary or exclusive group that will receive the indirect benefit of the grant being supplied.

4.1.9.3 Funding Guidelines Tab

The third tab on the Opportunity Information popup window is the Funding Guidelines tab (Figure 44).

Figure 41 Funding Guidelines Tab	
----------------------------------	--

Opportunity Description Eligibility Requirements Fun	ding Guidelines Sponsor Info	rmation	
Funding Guidelines			
The sponsor anticipates making 10 awards under this ann Source: Grants.gov (02/03/12). (elg)	ouncement. The estimated total	l program funding is \$250,000.	There is no cost sharing or matching requirement.
Funding Amount	Duration	2	Sponsor Currency Type
\$250,000.00 see detail	1 year(s)		USD
Total Potential Amount *			
250,000 USD			
Cost Sharing		Indirect Costs	
Required		Undetermined	

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 60 of 144



The following information is displayed on this tab:

Funding Guidelines	This field is a display-only text box containing a description of the sponsor's funding guidelines for the program.
Funding Amount	This field is a display-only text box containing the anticipated amount of funding available for the program.
Duration	This field is a display-only text box containing the duration of the program as set by the sponsor.
Sponsor Currency Type	This field is a display-only text box containing the currency type applicable to the program sponsor.
Total Potential Amount	This field is a display-only text box containing the total amount of funding available for the program. This is the converted funding amount, the same one that displays on the search results grid. The daily currency conversion rates are provided by XE.com. A user may access XE.com's Terms of Use by clicking on the <u>Terms of Use</u> link.
Cost Sharing	This field is a display-only text box containing the designation of whether the program requires Cost Sharing or not.
Indirect Costs	This field is a display-only text box containing the designation of whether the program has any Indirect Costs associated with it.



4.1.9.4 Sponsor Information Tab

The fourth and final tab on the Opportunity Information popup window is the Sponsor Information tab (Figure 44).

Figure 42 Sponsor Information Tab

Opportunity Description	Eligibility Requirements	Funding Guidelines	Sponsor Information
Sponsor Contact Infor	mation		
sponsor contact mor	mation		
Derek Litchfield, Internatio Division of International C 4401 North Fairfax Drive, 3 Arlington VA 22203-1622 U.S.A. Phone: 703-358-2634 Fax: E-Mail: <u>Derek Litchfield@</u> Website: Program URL: <u>http://www</u> Sponsor Instructions:	onal Affairs Specialist onservation Suite 1001 <u>(fws.qov</u> 07.grants.gov/search/search.	do?&mode=VIEW&oppId=	:142134

The following information is displayed on this tab:

Sponsor Contact Information	This field is a display-only text box containing the sponsor's contact information, including:
	 Contact Name; Contact Title; Contact Mailing Address; Contact Phone Number; Contact fax Number; Contact Email; Sponsor/Contact Website; Program URL; and Sponsor Instructions.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 62 of 144



4.1.9.5 Funding Opportunity Number Information Box

The first tab on the Opportunity Information popup window is the Opportunity Description tab (Figure 44).

Figure 43 Screenshot Name

Funding Opportunity Number: F12AS00057
CFDA Number: 15.672
Deadline Date: 01-May-2012
Deadline Type:
Established Date: 18-May-2010
Last Revised Date: 03-Feb-2012
Next Followup Date: 01-Apr-2013

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 63 of 144



The following information is displayed on this tab:

Funding Opportunity Number	This field is a display-only field containing a description of the sponsor's funding guidelines for the program.				
CFDA Number	This field is a display-only field containing the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number (if applicable) for the program.				
	The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) provides a full listing of all Federal programs available to State and local governments (including the District of Columbia); federally-recognized Indian tribal governments; Territories (and possessions) of the United States; domestic public, quasi- public, and private profit and nonprofit organizations and institutions; specialized groups; and individuals.				
Deadline Date	This field is a display-only field containing deadline date for the applicant to apply for the program.				
Deadline Type	This field is a display-only field containing deadline type for the selected program.				
Established Date	This field is a display-only field containing date the program was established.				
Last Revised Date	This field is a display-only field containing the date the program listing was last revised.				
Next Followup Date	This field is a display-only field containing the next followup date for the program listing.				

4.1.10 Bookmarking A Specific Program

Another option in the Results Returned section is to bookmark a specific program(s) by clicking the *button* under the Bookmarks column next to the selected program in the Results Returned section.



The Bookmark column is not present for anonymous users, only logged-in users may utilize this functionality to bookmark programs.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 64 of 144



Figure 44 Bookmarking a Specific Program in Results Returned

frogs								×	Search	2
esul	ts Found: 4							Search	n Options Clear Filter	Export 🗸
Drag	a column he	ade	er and drop it here to group by that column							
7	SPIN ID	т	Opportunity Title	Sponsor Name	т	Sponsor Number	т	Deadline Date	▼ Funding Amount*	T Bookmark
	03571		Research Grants	Queensland Frog Society				17-Feb-2012	1,028.50 USD	*
÷	03757		Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Fund	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/ of the Interior	Department	F12AS00005		01-Apr-2012	0.00 USD	•
1	12958		Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/ of the Interior	Department	F12AS00057		01-May-2012	250,000.00 USD	•
	39381		The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)	National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS		PA-11-027		07-Jan-2014	0.00 USD	+
	39381		The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)	National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS		PA-11-027		07-Jan-2014	0.00 USD	+

When you click the button for a selected program the Bookmark Group Popup (Figure 45) will open.

Figure 45 Bookmark Group Popup

insor Number	٣	Deadline Date T	Funding Amount*	٣	Bookmark
AS00005	۲	Create new group			•
AS00057	0	Select existing group			•
11-027					+
					ns 1 - 4 of 4
			Save Clo	se	
* Daily con	Version	rates provided by XE	com Terms of Use		info

On the Bookmark Group Popup (Figure 45), you have the choice to add the selected program to a newly created bookmark group or add it to an existing bookmark group (if available).

The Bookmark Group Popup defaults to the Create new group option.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 65 of 144



As such, if you'd like to create a new bookmark group for your selected program, ensure that the Create new group radiobutton is filled and then type in a name for your new bookmark group in the text field below.

In Figure 46, the user has elected to create a new bookmark group entitled 'Frogs Opportunities'.

Bookmark Group Popup – Create New Bookmark Group

T	Sponsor Number	T	Deadline Date	T	Funding Amount*	T	Bookmark
ent	F12AS00005	۲	Create new grouj Frogs Opportuni) ties			+
int	F12AS00057		Select existing gr	oup			+
	PA-11-027						+
					Save	SP	ns 1 - 4 of 4
	* Doily oor					00	info

Once the user has entered in the name of their new group, they will press the Save button at the bottom of the popup to save the selected program into the newly created bookmark group.

If the user clicks on the close button, no saves will be made, they will be returned to the Results Returned section with no bookmark created for the selected program.

If you'd like to add your selected program to an existing bookmark group, make sure the Select existing group radiobutton is filled and then check the group.

In Figure 46, the user can select to add the selected program to the 'Frogs Opportunities' bookmark group.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 66 of 144

Figure 46



Users may also elect to bookmark the selected program to multiple existing bookmark groups as shown in Figure 48.

Figure 48	Bookmark Group Popup –	Select Multiple Existing	g Bookmark Groups
0			, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,

nsor Number	▼ Deadline Date ▼ Funding Amount* ▼ Bookmark
\ S00005	Create new group
\S00057	Select existing group +
1-027	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Frog Programs
	ns 1 - 4 of 4
	Save Close
* Daily conv	rersion rates provided by XE.com. <u>Terms of Use</u> . Info

Once the user has selected the bookmark group(s) to add the selected program to, they will press the Save button at the bottom of the popup to save the selected program into the newly created bookmark group(s).

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 67 of 144



If the user clicks on the close button, no saves will be made, they will be returned to the Results Returned section with no bookmark created for the selected program.

Please see Section 4.6, Bookmarks for more information on working with bookmarked opportunities.

For	present for anonymous
Example Although the Bookmark column will still be pushed by users, only logged-in users may bookmark	programs.

4.1.11 Exporting Your Search Results To Word or Excel

SPIN contains enhanced functionality that allows you to directly export your search results to a Microsoft Excel or Word document.

To utilize this export functionality, press (located to the right of the category filter list) and choose which format you would like to export to from the drop-down list: 'Export as Word' or 'Export as Excel'.

Figure 49	Export Search	Results	Feature
i igui o to	Export Ocuron	neouno	/ cuture

Resu	ts Found: 4										Export 👻
Drag	Drag a column header and drop it here to group by that column Ex								Export	as Word	
	SPIN ID T	Opportunity Title	۲	Sponsor Name T	Sponsor Number	T	Deadline Date	Υ F	unding Amount*	Export	as Excel
٠	03571	Research Grants		Queensland Frog Society			17-Feb-2012	1	1,025.44 USD		+
٠	03757	Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Fund		U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00005		01-Apr-2012	C	0.00 USD		+
٠	12958	Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline		U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00057		01-May-2012	2	250,000.00 USD		+
÷	39381	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)		National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS	PA-11-027		07-Jan-2014	0	0.00 USD		+
G	양 제 4 4 1 10 ~ > 위 Displaying items 1 - 4 of 4										

Once you have selected to Export as a Word document or Export as an Excel document, a File Download popup (Figure 50) will appear prompting you to either Open the new document upon creation or Save the document for future use/access.

If you click on the Cancel button, a file will neither be opened nor saved and you will be returned to the Results Returned section filled with your unaltered search results.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 68 of 144



Figure 50 File Download Popup



If you click on the Open button, the new document will be opened in the select program (either Word or Excel) (see Figure 51).

Figure 51 Sample Exported Search Results Document

Page 19 Page 19 Pag	GridResults[] - Microsoft Word pat Pat >	c AaB AaB 2 Title Sut Styles	<i>tbCc. AaBbCci</i> subtle Em.	AaBbCcL Char Emphasis Style	age s× c Replace by Select × Editing
SPIN D1 Filtero SPIN Opportunity/Title Filtero	Sponsor:Name¶ Filtera	Sponsor <u>Number</u> ¶ Filter¤	Deadline Date¶ Filtero	Funding:Amount Filtera	° Bookmark
03571¤ Research Grants¤	Queensland Frog Society 🕮	a	17-Feb-2012¤	1,025.44 USD¤	a o
03757a Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals Conservation Funda	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior a	F12AS00005¤	01-Apr-2012¤	0.00·USD¤	α 0
x12958¤ Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline¤	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of the Interior:¤	F12AS00057¤	01-May-2012¤	250,000.00·USD¤	a °
439381a The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles in Drug Abuse (R01)a	National-Institute on Drug-Abuse/NIH/DHHS ∞	PA-11-027¤	07-Jan-2014¤	0.00-USD¤	α ⁰
Refresti Instruct 19 Ioselect nextest Displaying items:1~4-of 4¶					=

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 69 of 144



If you click on the Save button on the File Download popup (Figure 50), the Exported Document Save As Popup (Figure 52) will appear prompting you to name the document and browse to select the desired location to save the new file to.



Figure 52 Exported Document Save As Popup

If you click on the Cancel button at the bottom of this popup, the file will not be saved and you will be returned to the Results Returned section filled with your unaltered search results.

If you would like to Save the exported document, once you have entered a file name and selected the location for your new document, click on the Save button and the file will be generated and saved.

A Download Complete popup (Figure 56) appears designating that the file has been downloaded.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 70 of 144



Figure 53 Download Complete Popup

Download complete
Download Complete
GridResults.xls from spin.infoedglobal.com
Downloaded: 4.50KB in 1 sec Download to: C:\Users\jgorman\Desktop\GridResults.xls Transfer rate: 4.50KB/Sec Close this dialog box when download completes Qpen Open Folder Close

On this popup, you can select to open the newly created document (see Figure 51) by clicking the Open button. If you'd like to open the folder that the newly created document was sent to, click the Open Folder button and the Folder View popup will appear (Figure 54).



Organize 🔻 😰 Open 🔻 Shar	e with 🔻 Print	E-mail	Burn Ne	w folder			1000	
🔆 Favorites	Name	^		Date modified	Туре	Size		
📰 Desktop 🗐 Recent Places ᠾ Downloads	GridResults			4/24/2012 10:29 PM	Microsoft Office E	51	KB	
i Libraries i Documents J Music I Dictures								
Videos								This can' previe
P Computer Gateway (C:) Removable Disk (F:) groups (\\infofs03) (G:)								
🙀 Network								

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 71 of 144



If you double-click on the exported document in this Folder View, it will open in the selected program.

Now let's backtrack a bit so we can address an important note incorporating the fact that different organizations may be running varied versions of Microsoft Office:

Please Note	Whether you are opening the exported document or saving the exported document, the Save As Type defaults to Microsoft Office Word 97-2003 with a file extension =.doc or Microsoft Office Excel 97-2003 with a file extension =.xls.
	When opening or saving an exported document, if you are running a more recent version of Microsoft Word or Excel than 2003, a popup message (Figure 55) will appear informing you that the file you are trying to open is in a different format than specified by the file extension. It asks you to verify that the file is not corrupted and is from a trusted source before opening the file.
	The file is not corrupted and is from a trusted source so it is safe to open.

	Figure 55	Different Format Validation Popup
--	-----------	-----------------------------------

Microsoft	t Office Excel
<u> </u>	The file you are trying to open, 'GridResults.xls', is in a different format than specified by the file extension. Verify that the file is not corrupted and is from a trusted source before opening the file. Do you want to open the file now?
	Yes <u>No</u> <u>H</u> elp

If you would like to continue open (or save) the file, click the Yes button.

If you click on the No button, the file will not be opened (or saved) and you will be returned to the Results Returned section populated with your unaltered search results.

If you click on the Help button, a Microsoft Office Help Screen will open with information about file extensions and what to do when a file is in a different file format than what its extension indicates (see Figure 56).

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 72 of 144


Figure 56 Microsoft Office Help Screen



4.1.11.1 Customizing Export Content

Additionally, the user has the ability to customize their export content. Keeping in mind that the export document is a representation of what is displayed on the screen, including if the "detail section" of the opportunities is displaying, if the user decides to filter or sort the results or expand them to view more detailed information, the exported document(s) will vary.

For Example	In the following illustration (Figure 57), the user has performed a Basic search for 'frogs' with three applicable programs found and the Results Returned section left in its original view (with no expansion to include detailed information and no filtering by columns).
	Figure 58 is a representation of the resulting exported Microsoft Excel document.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 73 of 144



infoEd SPIN Jess Gorman InfoEd Global Sign Out Category Filters • Search Options • Searches • Bookmarks • Funding Guides • Keywords • Search mode: BASIC 🛑 X Search 💾 ? frogs Applicant Location | Citizenship Status | Clear Filters | Export -Results Found: 3 Drag a column header and drop it here to group by that column SPINID T Opportunity Title Sponsor Name T Sponsor Numbe Deadline Date T T Bookma 03757 Wildlife Without Borders Critically Endangered Animals U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department F12AS00005 01-Apr-2012 0.00 USD + Conservation Fund of the Interior U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department F12AS00057 + 12958 01-May-2012 Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in Decline 250,000.00 USD + of the Interior The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01) National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS PA-11-027 07-Jan-2014 0.00 USD + 😘 K K 1 10 🔻 🕨 Displaying items 1 - 3 of 3

Figure 57 Customizing Export Content – Example 1

The following illustration is an example of the exported Microsoft Excel document for the search performed in Figure 57.

Figure 58 Customizing Export Content – Example 1 Resulting Exported Document

G		• •	Grie	dResults[1] - Microsoft B	xcel				- ® X
E	Ноще	Insert PageLayout Formulas Data	Review View Add-Ins Acroba	at					@ _ = X
		N P M A	R W X B						
	Conv	Arial - 10 - A A	= = 😸 Wrap Text	General *		1 🚽 💼 1	🗗 💷 🚡		
Pa	aste Segment D	alatar B I U - 🖽 - 🖄 - A - I	🗉 🗃 🗊 💷 Merge & Center 🗸 🗍	\$ ~ % , .0 .00	Conditional Forma	at Cell Insert D	Delete Format	Sort & Find &	
	Clipboard	S Font S	Alignment	Number 5	Formatting * as Tabl	le + Styles + +	Cells	Editing	
	Δ1	• fr Page 1							×
	A P	6	P	E	E	G	ш		
1	Page 1	c	b	L.		0			
2	Drag a column h	eader and drop it here to group by that column	1						
	SPIN ID	Opportunity Title	Sponsor Name	Sponsor Number	Deadline Date	Funding Amount *	Bookmark		
3	Filmer	Eilte -	File-	Eiles a	Files	Elles a			
4	Fitter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Fitter	Filter			
		Wildlife Without Borders Critically	LLS Fish & Wildlife						
5	3757	Endangered Animals Conservation Fund	Service/Department of the Interior	F12AS00005	1-Apr-12	0.00 USD			
		Wildlife Without Borders Amphibians in	U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service/Department of th	10					
6	12958	Decline	Interior	F12AS00057	1-May-12	250,000.00 USD			
		The Development Of Frontal Cortex And	<u>i</u>						=
		Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug	National Institute on Drug						
7	39381	Abuse (R01)	Abuse/NIH/DHHS	PA-11-027	7-Jan-14	0.00 USD			
8	Refresh								
10	tirstprev								
11	10select								
12	nextlast	1.2.62							
14	Displaying items	1.000							
15	1								
16	-								
18									
19									
20	-								
14	GridRes	ults 1			14.		Ш		
Rea	ady							III II 100% 🕣	U (+
				· · · · · ·					

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 74 of 144



For Example	In this next illustration (Figure 59), the user has performed a Basic search for 'frogs' with three applicable programs found and the Results Returned section has been expanded to include detailed information and the user has filtered the results by Opportunity Title.
	The following illustration is an example of the exported Microsoft Excel document for the search performed in Figure 59.
	Figure 60 is a representation of the resulting exported Microsoft Excel document.

Figure 59 Customizing Export Content – Example 2

SPIN"								Jess Gorman I	nfoEd Global
					Category Filters 👻	Search Options 👻	Searches 👻	Bookmarks 👻 Funding Gui	des 👻 Keyw
Search r	node: BASIC 🧲								
frogs								X Search ?	
Results Fr	ound: 3					App	olicant Location	Citizenship Status Clear Filter	s Export 👻
- Oppo	ortunity Title 🗙								
	SPIN ID	🛙 Opportunity Title 🍸	Sponsor Name 🛛 🕇	Sponsor Number 🛛 🕇	Deadline Date	T Fundin	g Amount *	T Bookmark	
- v Op	portunity Title: The Develo	pment Of Frontal Cortex A	nd Limbic System An	d Their Roles In Drug Ab	use (R01)				
٦	39381	The Development Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)	National Institute on Drug Abuse/NIH/DHHS	PA-11-027	07-Jan-2014	0.00 U	SD	•	
	Contact Name		Da-Yu Wu, PhD,	Program Director					
	Contact Telephone		301-443-1887						
	Contact Email		wudv@nida.nih.	gov					
	Sponsor Website		null						
1	Program LIRI		http://orants1.nit	n nov/grants/guide/na-file	s/PA-11-027 html				

The following illustration is an example of the exported Microsoft Excel document for the search performed in Figure 59.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 75 of 144

Figure 60 Customizing Export Content – Example 2 Resulting Exported Document

_								
F	1 2	- (fit) =		GridResults[1] - Microsof	't Excel			- • ×
6	Home	Insert Page Layo	ut Formulas Data Review Vies	v Add.Ins Acrobat				🔞 🗕 📼 🗙
	H K Cut	NP	M A R W	L B	i 💷 🚥		Σ AutoSum × America Ada	
	Conv	Arial	• 10 • A A = = = >	General General	1 🛃 📝	1 🚽 🗂 👉 🚛	Z DI	
Pas	te Eorm	B I U	- <u>- </u> - <u>A</u> - E = = ; ; ;	Merge & Center - S - % ,	8 Conditional Forma	at Cell Insert Delete Format	Sort & Find &	
	Clipboard	5	Font S Alignm	ent 🔅 Number	Formatting * as labi	e + Styles + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	Editing	
	A1	- (E Bago 1				,	×
	AI	• (* .	Jx Page I	-	-			
1	A B	C	D	E	F	G H		K L
2	sorted asce	ending)Opportunity Title						
3		SPIN ID	Opportunity Title	Sponsor Name	Sponsor Number	Deadline Date Funding Amoun	L [*] De elemente	
4		Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter Filter	BOOKMARK	
5	Opportunit	ty Title: The Developn	nent Of Frontal Cortex And Limbic System	And Their Roles In Drug Abuse (R01)				
			The Development Of Frontal Cortex And	<u> </u>				_
			Limbic System And Their Roles In Drug	National Institute on Drug				-
6		39381	Abuse (R01)	Abuse/NIH/DHHS	PA-11-027	7-Jan-14 0.00 USD		
7		Contact Name	Da-Yu Wu, PhD, Program Director					
9		Contact Email	wudy@nida.nih.gov					
10		Sponsor Website	null					
			http://grants1.nih.gov/grants/guide/pa-					
11		Program URL	files/PA-11-027.html	-				_
			07-Jan-2012, 05-Feb-2012, 07-May-2012, 05					_
			Jun-2012, 07-Sep-2012, 05-Oct-2012, 07-Jan	I=				_
			2013 07-Sep-2013 05-Oct-2013 07-Jan-					_
12		Deadline Dates (ALL)	2014					_
			The sponsor invites applications that propose	9				_
			to study the development of the frontal and prefrontal codices, together with the					_
			subcortical areas of the limbic system, that					_
			play significant roles in mediating emotional					_
			and motivated benavior. This initiative is designed to support the basic neuroscience.					
			research into the fundamental mechanisms					_
			of development of the frontal and prefrontal					
14 4	► ► Grid	Results 1	contices, as well as the midbrain and basal		14			► T
Real	ly						III II 100% 🔾	
-								

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 76 of 144



4.2 Advanced Search

Another way to search for results is to use the Advanced Search. This customized search method allows you to tailor your search; returning fewer programs but more specific results. This function is helpful because it allows you to weed out programs you know are not pertinent to your search, while still getting a variety of results.



To begin, click the BASIC Conclusion located next to Search Mode. A SPIN Search Options popup window (Figure 61) will open, verifying the change in your search method. Continuing with the advanced search option will remove any parameters you placed on your prior searches and any saved results.

Figure 61 SPIN Search Options Popup – Advanced Search

infoed SPIN'				Anonymous Us	er InfoEd Internation	ial, Inc. <u>Sign In</u>
	Category Filters 👻	Options 👻	Searches 🔻	Bookmarks 🔻	Funding Guides 🔻	Keywords 👻
Search mode: BASIC						
Enter search terms here; See ? to instruction	SPIN Search Options Enabling the advanced search w parameters and results. Are you sure you want to proceed	ill remove curr I? Contir	ent search nue Cance	××	Search 📑	2
		* Daily conver	sion rates provid	ed by XE.com. <u>Terr</u>	ms of Use. 💦 ไ	infoEd [°]

Clicking the Continue button will close the popup window and the SPIN Main Screen will be refreshed to display the Advanced Search Main Page (Figure 62). Clicking the

Cancel button will return the user back to the SPIN Main Screen with their current search parameters and results intact.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 77 of 144



Figure 62 Advanced Search Main Page

Ed SPIN'				Anonymous Us	er InfoEd Internation	1al, Inc. <u>Sign</u>
	Category Filters 🔻	Options 🔻	Searches 🔻	Bookmarks 🔻	Funding Guides 🔻	Keywords
Search mode: ADVANCED	_					
AND += += ×	Searc	:h 📄 🤶				

The advanced search page initially appears similar to the basic search page. Both the yellow tool bar and the Search, Save, and question mark buttons are still located on the screen. The only immediate difference is the addition of the Advanced Search Icon Bar

AND 🚝 🔚 🗙 and the lack of a search textbox.

4.2.1 Advanced Search Icon Bar

The Advanced Search Icon Bar (Figure 63) is the foundation of the Advanced Search.

Figure 63 Advanced Search Icon Bar

AND 📲 🖬 🗙

The Advanced Search Icon Bar is divided into four parts:

AND/OR	Clicking AND opens a drop-down menu containing the words AND
(Search Logic)	and OR. Click on whichever search logic option you would like to
AND OR	use in your search.
Add Expression	Clicking this icon triggers a blank text box and the words Full Program and Contains. You may click both of these words, generating two drop-down menus.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 78 of 144



Add Group	Clicking this icon creates an additional Advanced Search Icon Bar, located right below the first one, creating a new, lower level in the hierarchy of the search. Every time you click the Add Group icon, you are creating a new group to use in your search.
Delete ×	With the exception the icon in the first Advanced Search Icon Bar, you may delete any of the additional groups/lines. If you have searched using specific criteria and delete the line, the results will change depending on what you deleted.

4.2.1.1 **AND/OR Search Logic**

The first thing the user does when they access the Advanced Search Main Page is click on the AND/OR Search Logic Function, which is the first part of the Icon Bar.

Clicking 'AND' opens a drop-down list containing the words AND and OR (Figure 64). These AND/OR options represent the search logic to be used in the Advanced Search. The user will click on whichever search logic option they would like to base their search on.

Figure 64	AND/OR Search	n Logic Function		
Search	mode: ADV	ANCED		
AND -	+≣ + <u>=</u> ×		Search	?
A	ND			
0	R			

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 79 of 144



Add Expression 4.2.1.2

The second function on the Advanced Search Icon Bar is the Add Expression 🚝 button.

Clicking this icon triggers the Add Expression Icon Bar to appear. There are a few main ×

elements to this new Icon Bar including a blank search box

and a button bar with the words 'Full Program' Full Program and 'Contains' Contains' (see Figure 65).

Figure 65	Add Expression Icon Bar				
	Search mode: ADVANCED				
	AND += += ×		Search	?	
	Full Program Contains	×			
			_		

When clicked, 'Full Program' becomes a drop-down list where the user can select the specific expression field(s) they would like to search/filter using.

Full Program Full Program (Expression Search Field)	The Full Program drop-down contains a list of select fields that the user may select to search/filter using and build into their expression. We call this the 'expression search field'.
	The default value for the expression search field is 'Full Program' which when used as the expression value, searches the entire program listing (all fields contained in the Full Program drop-down) with the expression search mode ('Contains' drop-down value) to find the program(s) which correspond to whatever the user enters into the blank search box. 'Full Program' is functionally equivalent to the Basic Search mode and can be used to search the entirety of the SPIN record.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 80 of 144







The Full Program drop-down list contains all the program fields you may utilize in this expression for your search, including:

CFDA Number	This is the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number for the program (if applicable).			
Contact Address	This is the contact address for the program.			
Contact City	This is the contact city for the program.			
Contact Country	This is the program's contact country.			
Contact Email	This is the program's contact email address.			
Contact Fax	This is the program's contact fax number.			
Contact Name	This is the name of the individual you are required to contact for the program.			
Contact Phone	This is the contact phone number of the program.			
Contact State	This is the contact state for the opportunity.			
Cost Sharing:	This is the designation of whether cost sharing is required or not.			
Cost Sharing Cap (%)	This is the percentage of cost sharing cap that is on the program.			
Deadline Type	This is the program's deadline type.			



Deadline	This is the program's deadline date. There is an 💷 icon next to the text box.
	Clicking this icon opens a calendar allowing you to scroll through the months to choose your specific deadline.
Eligibility	This is the eligibility requirements for the program.
Established Date	This is the date the program was established. There is an 🛅 icon next to the text box.
	Clicking this icon opens a calendar allowing you to scroll through the months to choose the specific Established Date.
Follow-Up Date	There is an 🛅 icon next to the text box.
	Clicking this icon opens a calendar allowing you to scroll through the months to choose the follow-up date.
Full Program	This value is selected when the user would like to
Funding Amount- Total	This is the total amount of funding available for the project.
Funding Detail	This is the detailed text designated as the Funding Guidelines for the program.
Funding Opportunity Number	This is the program's funding opportunity number.
Indirect Cost Cap	This is the maximum value for Indirect Costs associated with this program.
Indirect Costs:	This is the designation of whether there are Indirect Costs associated with this program.
Keywords	These are keyword(s) associated with the program.
	If you choose this option, an \fbox icon will be located next to the X.
	Clicking this icon opens the Keyword main page, see Section 4.8, Keywords for more information on this topic.
Limited Submission	This is whether or not the sponsor has imposed a limit on the quantity of submissions for each university/organization.
Objectives	These are the program's goals.



Open Application Period	This is the designation of whether the program has an Open Application period.		
Revised Date	This is the last date the program was revised.		
	There is an icon next to the text box. Clicking this icon opens a calendar allowing you to scroll through the months to choose the revised date.		
SPIN ID	This is the InfoEd-generated SPIN ID number used to identify the program.		
Sponsor	This is the name of the sponsor that is offering the program.		
Sponsor Mechanism	This is the sponsor mechanism.		
Sponsor Program URL	This is the programs URL address.		
Sponsor Type	This is the sponsor type.		
Sponsor Website	This is the website URL for the sponsor.		
Synopsis	This is the programs outline or summary.		
Target Group	This is the group the program is geared towards.		
Title	This is the title of the program.		
Zip/Postal Code	This is the zip code of the program.		

The user selects either 'Full Program' Full Program or one of the above fields as the expression search field to build the expression upon.



Then it is time to move onto the next part of the Add Expression Icon Bar, the 'Contains' drop-down:

Contains Contains	The 'Contains' drop-down is the expression's mode and is a very 'reactive', changeable field.
(Expression Mode)	For example, for expression fields that are text-based, the field is titled 'Contains' and can either have two values – 'Contains' and 'Does Not Contain' or for select fields there will be more values including: Contains, Does Not Contain, Ends With, Equal To, Is Not Null, Not Equal To, and Starts With (see Figure 67).
	For numeric/quantitative fields like Cost Sharing Cap (%) this field is not 'Contains', it is 'Equal To' listing values like - Equal To, Greater Than, Greater Than or Equal To, Less Than, Less Than or Equal To, and Not Equal To (see Figure 68).

Figure 67

Adding An Expression – Contains Lists

Search mode:	ND WINGED		
AND - += += ×			Search 💾 ?
Full Program Co	ntains 🔹	×	
	Contains		
	Does Not Contain		
Search mode:			
	ADVANCED		
	ADVANCED		
	ADVANCED		Search 📑 ?
AND 7 7 7 7	ADVANCED X	×	Search 💾 ?
AND + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	ADVANCED × Contains • Contains	×	Search 📄 ?
	Contains Contains Does Not Contain	×	Search 💾 ?
AND 7 THE T	X Contains X Contains Does Not Contain Ends With	×	Search 💾 ?
AND $\overrightarrow{+}$ $\overrightarrow{+}$	ADVANCED Contains Contains Does Not Contain Ends With Equal To	×	Search 💾 ?
AND += +	ADVANCED Contains Contains Does Not Contain Ends With Equal To Is Not Null	×	Search 블 ?
AND += +	ADVANCED Contains Contains Does Not Contain Ends With Equal To Is Not Null Not Equal To	×	Search 📄 ?

For numeric/quantitative fields the field is not titled 'Contains', it is titled 'Equal To' with values like Equal To, Greater Than, Greater Than or Equal To, Less Than, Less Than or Equal To, and Not Equal To (Figure 68).

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 84 of 144



Figure 68	Adding An Expre	ssion – Equals List		
	Search mode: AND THE TRANS	DVANCED	Search 📑 ?	
	Cost Sharing Cap (%)	Equal To -	×	
		Equal To		
		Greater Than		
		Greater Than or Equal To		
		Less Than		
		Less Than or Equal To		
		Not Equal To		

The user selects the desired expression mode ^{Contains} (i.e. Contains, Does Not Contain, Equal To, Less Than, etc.) and then it is time to complete the expression by entering in their search criteria in the blank search field × located next to the expression mode.

(Blank Search Field)	The user enters their desired search criteria in this blank
×	search field.

4.2.1.2.1 Single-Level Advanced Search Example

When the user has completed entering their expression search field, their expression mode and their search criteria in the blank search box, we say that they have created a Single Level Advanced Search (one expression).

For Example	If you selected 'Contact City' (as the expression search field), then chose 'Starts With' (as the expression mode) then entered 'B'; in the blank search field then every program that has a Contact City that starts with B will be listed in the search results.
	Utilizing the AND/OR functionality and the Add Expression Icon Bar, you may create an unlimited number of expressions to drill further down and get more and more specific in what you are looking for.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 85 of 144



Figure 69 Single Level Advanced Search Sample

Search mode: ADVA	NCED		
AND 🐺 🐺 🗙			Search 💾 ?
Contact City Starts With	В	×	

You may select to add additional expressions by clicking on the Add Expression to the Add Expression search field Full Program, search mode Contains, and search criteria

Please see Section 4.2.1.3.1, Multi-Level Advanced Search Example or Section 4.2.2An Advanced Search Example to see sample searches using multiple expressions.

4.2.1.3 Add Group

Every time you click the Add Group icon, you are creating a new AND/OR expression group to use in your search. The reason you may want to create a new group is to add additional search criteria.

Along with creating a new group, you are essentially adding a new level to the hierarchy of the search and now have a Multi-Level Advanced Search.

4.2.1.3.1 Multi-Level Advanced Search Example

When the user enters multiple expressions by adding group(s), we say that they have created a Multi-Level Advanced Search (multiple expressions).



For Example	If you create an additional group, you may now create a Multi- Level Advanced Search (see Figure 70).
	For example, we can search to find any programs that contain the words TREE <u>AND</u> CLOUDS <u>AND</u> SOIL <u>OR</u> SEEDS in any of the program fields.
	In order to do this, we create the first OR expression to include the Full Program (all program fields) as the expression search field and then Contains as the expression mode and then enter in 'SEEDS' as the first criteria.
	Then we add a new group using the AND expression including the Full Program (all program fields) as the expression search field and then Contains as the expression mode and then enter in 'TREE' as the second criteria you will add two more identiacal expressions for 'CLOUDS' and 'SOIL'.
	As you can see in Figure 70, you may create an unlimited number of groups to get more and more specific in what you're searching for.
	Also, if you use the OR term, you <u>MUST</u> have at least two criteria you're using in your search. You're searching for humans OR animals, fire OR smoke OR water, etc.
	Using the OR language with only one term will result in the search basically only searching for that singular term.



nfoEd SPIN	
Search mode: $\overrightarrow{ADVANCED}$	Search ?
- Full Program Contains SEEDS	×
AND $\overline{\overline{+}}$ $\overline{\overline{+}}$ x	
- Full Program Contains TREE	×
Full Program Contains CLOUDS	×
Full Program Contains SOIL	×

SPIN USER GUIDE, *VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc.* Page 87 of 144



Please see Section 4.2.2, An Advanced Search Example to see a sample search using expression groups.

4.2.2 An Advanced Search Example

Let's assume you want to search for programs about Automobiles. You would begin by clicking the Add Expression icon, bringing up the Add Expression Icon Bar.

You would enter Full Program for the expression search field because you want to search all programs fields for the word Automobile. Then you would select Contains as the search mode and enter 'Automobile' in the blank search field (Figure 71).

Figure 71 Advanced Search – Setting Up The First Expression

JOEd SPIN				Anonymous Us	er InfoEd Internati	onal, Inc. <u>Sign In</u>
	Category Filters 🔻	Options 🔻	Searches 🔻	Bookmarks 🔻	Funding Guides	Keywords 🔻
Search mode: ADVANCED	Sea	rch 💾 📑	2			
Full Program Contains Automobile	×					
		* Daily convers	ion rates provid	ed by XE.com. <u>Terr</u>	ns of Use. 🚫	info <mark>Ed</mark>

Next, you decide you'd like to make sure the program's deadline is in the future. So you would then add another group with deadlines equal to today's date.



Ciana 70	Advanced Coevels Adding A Cocend Eventorian
FIGURE 77	Advanced Search – Adding A Second Expression
i igui o i E	

	Category Filters 🔻	Options 🔻	Searches 🔻	Bookmarks 🔻	Funding Guides 🔻	Keyword
Search mode: ADVANCED						
AND + + + x	Sea	arch 💾 ?				
Full Program Contains Automobile	×					
Deadlines Equal To 13-Jan-2012	×					

Now, you want to add another word to your search. You want to search for full programs containing the words Automobile AND Boats.

Figure 73	Advanced Search - Adding Additional Expressions
-----------	---

	Category Fi	Iters 👻 Options 👻 Sea	rches 👻 Bookmarks 👻	Funding Guides 🔻 Keywords
Search mode: 😑 ADVANCEE	D .			
AND + + + x		Search 💾 ?		
- Full Program Contains Autom	nobile ×			
– Deadlines Greater Than 13-Ja	an-2012 🔠 ×			
Full Program Contains Boats	s X			

The search will only return programs that contain the words Automobile AND Boats, with deadlines after January 13, 2012. If the program does not contain both words, it will not show up in the results.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 89 of 144



Please Note	In the new SPIN, we have made usability a priority! As such, we know that not every person approaches a problem from the same perspective. Plainly speaking, in SPIN, there are sometimes multiple ways to accomplish the same objective
	The "free text fields" (Opportunity Title, Synopsis, Objectives, Eligibility, Funding Detail, and Full Program) offer the same full-text functionality as the Basic search.
	So, for example, a user could also accomplish the same results as shown in Figure 73 by placing both automobile and boats in the top expression.
	For Figure 74, the user could alternatively accomplish the same results using a combination of parentheses and the "OR" full-text operator.

Now, let's say you would like to get even more specific to find programs that contain Automobiles AND Boats, and Gas OR Fuel. You would then click the Add Group icon and change AND to OR. Then, click the Add Expression icon two times to add two additional text boxes.

|--|

	Category Filters 🔻	Options - Searches -	Bookmarks 🔻	Funding Guides 🔻	Keywor
Search mode: ADVANCED					
AND 🐺 👬 🗙		iearch 💾 🤋			
Full Program Contains Automobile	×				
Deadlines Greater Than 13-Jan-2012	II ×				
Full Program Contains Boats	×				
OR = + ×					
- Full Program Contains Gas	×				
Full Program Contains Fuel	×				

The search will only find programs that contain the words Automobile AND Boats AND Fuel OR Gas. If both Automobile and Boats are present in a program but Gas or Fuel are not, the program will not be in your results.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 90 of 144



Additionally, if a program contains the words Boats and Fuel but not Automobile, it will not be in your results. The only way programs will be in the results list is if they contain all the necessary requirements.

Throughout your search, you may go through at any point and change the expressions, groups, words or delete any of the lines. Once you are satisfied with the guidelines, you

may search for results or save the current criteria by clicking the Save icon located next to the blank search field (only available to logged-in users).

Key Concept	It's important to remember, using AND in your search requires all of the criteria to be present. Using the OR grouping will require one or another criteria to be present.
	You may have an unlimited number of expressions or groups in a search, causing the results to be more and more tailored to your requirements.

This search method is set up as a hierarchy, so all of the criteria are based off the prior specification. Another way to look at the function is using the 'Parent' and 'Child' concept.

Based on the preceding example, the first AND statement containing Automobile and Boats is the 'Parent' in the search. Everything from this point on will be focused around that section. When you add any additional expressions or groups, they will all be 'children'. So the OR group containing Gas and Fuel is the 'child' of the first AND statement.

The advanced search may be tricky to use at first, but it returns very specific results. You may tailor your search to be exactly what you want to find and spend less time sorting through programs.

Similar specific search results can also be achieved by utilizing the Basic Search along with the Category Filters (Section 4.3).



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 91 of 144

4.3 Category Filters

As mentioned in Section 3.1, the first section of the Yellow Tool Bar located at the top right of the SPIN Main Screen is Category Filters. Category Filters are used to describe yourself and your institution and filter on opportunity eligibility requirements.

The Category Filters section contains five filter options:

- Applicant Location,
- Applicant Type,
- Project Type,
- Project Location, and
- Citizenship Status.

To access the filter options, hover your cursor over Category Filters tab on the SPIN Main Screen as shown in Figure 75.

Figure 75	Category Filters Main Menu	1
i igule i s	oalegory i niers mani menu	

			Jes	ss Gorman InfoEd G	lobal <u>Sign Ot</u>
Category Filters 🔻	Search Options 🔻	Searches 🔻	Bookmarks 🔻	Funding Guides 👻	Keywords 👻
Applicant Location					
Applicant Type			¥ Search	2	
Project Type					
Project Location					
Citizenship Status					

The five Category Filter options will display in a drop down menu. You may click the specific category you wish to filter by, opening the SPIN Search Filters popup window (Figure 76).

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 92 of 144



Figure 76 SPIN Search Filters Popup

infoed SPIN'	SPIN Search Filters						×	<u>Sign Out</u>
	Applicant Location	Applicant Type	Project Type	Project Location	Citizenship Status		vo	ords 🔻
Search mode:	This field is often pre This is used to deter based in your locatio	filled for you based mine where you or n. If nothing is sele	l on your institutio your institution is cted, the system v	n, although there ma located. This will er will not filter on this t	ay be a more precise sel Isure that you only receiv field.	lection within the location hierarchy. re opportunities available to applicants	?	
	Applicant Locatio	ons		0	Chosen Applicant Locati	ions		
	 Africa Americas Antarctic Asia Europe Oceania 			•				
	L					Save and Exit Exit 4	?	
				* Daily con	version rates provided b	y XE.com. <u>Terms of Use</u> . 🔗 i	nfo	Ed

Since you have selected 'Applicant Location' as your filter option from the Category Filter Main Menu (Figure 75), that's what the SPIN Search Filters popup window defaults to. Although, it would open to whichever filter option you chose in the Category Filters Main Menu.

Simply click your desired filter category when the Search Filters popup window is open, or close the screen and use the picklist.

Each category filter window contains unique information for that specific category. Although, every window also contains some standardized features such as the Save and Exit button, the Exit button, and the ? button.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 93 of 144

Save and Exit	Choosing filters and pressing the Save and Exit button saves the filter information and applies it to your search.
Exit Exit	Clicking the Exit button closes the screen without saving the information.
Help	Finally, pressing the button open a Help popup which discusses how to use the selection tool.
Please	Clicking between the filter categories retains any information you previously picked, without having to save and exit each time.
	Although, once you are finished with entire Category Filters section, make sure to save your settings by pressing the Save and Exit button.

The hierarchies created in this area are intended to ensure that the selections made in each category are not unnecessarily excluding opportunities that you would be eligible for. These category filters are intended as assistance to fine tuning your search results, they are not intended to be fine-grained reporting tool functionality.

For Example	For example, if a user indicates that they are a senior faculty member, they will also receive opportunities that "any" faculty member is eligible for, as well as opportunities that "any" individual is eligible for.
	is eligible for.

4.3.1 Applicant Location

The first category you may filter by is Application Location. This category is used to determine where you or your institution is located. Using this filter option will ensure you will only receive opportunities available to applicants based on your specific location. The content of this section is based upon United Nations and ISO data.

You may access the Applicant Location filter category (Figure 77) by clicking **SPIN Main Screen > Category Filters > Applicant Location** or Applicant Location from within the SPIN Search Filters popup window.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 94 of 144



Figure 77 Applicant Location

	Applicant Location	Applicant Type	Project Type	Project Locati	on Citizenship Status		ords 🔻
rch mode:	This field is often pre This is used to deter based in your locatio	efilled for you based mine where you or on. If nothing is sele	l on your institutio your institution is cted, the system	n, although there located. This wil will not filter on th	may be a more precise se l ensure that you only receiv iis field.	lection within the location hierarchy. re opportunities available to applicants	?
	Applicant Location	ons			Chosen Applicant Locati	ions	
	- Europe - Americas - Caribbean - Northern An - South Amer	nerica ica		*	Africa Eastern Africa Middle Africa Northern Africa Southern Africa Antarctic Asia Europe Oceania Americas		
						Course and Full Full	

At the top of the popup window is the list of additional category filters along with a brief description of the specific filter you are using.

Below the filter description is the Applicant Location list and the Chosen Applicant Locations list. You may filter down to a more specific location (for example, going from **America > Northern America > United States > New York**) by clicking the Expand is icon next to the specific location.



Once you have choosen your location, either double click or highlight the location and click the Forward is button. This will transfer the chosen location from Applicant Locations to Chosen Applicant Locations. The specific location will initially display as the main category filter (for example Americanas instead of New York), but once you expand the hiregraphical tree (by clicking the Expand is icon), your specific location will be displayed.

If you moved a location to the incorrect list, and you wish to take it off, either double click or highlight that location and click the Back for button.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 95 of 144



Another option you have is to transfer the entire location list from Applicant Locations to Chosen Applicant Locations, or visa versa. Click either the Group Back de button or Group Forward be button, and all the possible locations will move to the opposite location category.

Once you are finished selecting your chosen location to filter by, click the Save and Exit button to save your filters and close the popup window, or the Exit button to close the popup window without saving.

For Example	You are from an institution located in Italy, so you want to set your category filter to reflect your most accurate location.		
	You open Category Filters > Application Location and click Europe. Multiple options open, and since Italy is located in Southern Europe, click the Expand it icon next to Southern Europe.		
	Then double click Italy and press the Save and Exit button. The screen closes and only programs that will now display in your results will be programs that you're eligible for based on your location		

4.3.2 Applicant Type

Another category you may use to filter your search is Applicant Type. This filter is also set up as a hierarchy, and is used to determine which attribute(s) the sponsor will require of an applicant, either as an individual or as an organization. These are characteristics that pertain specially to you or your institution.

To access Applicant Type (Figure 78), click **SPIN Main Screen > Category Filters > Applicant Type** or Applicant Type from within the SPIN Search Filters popup window.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 96 of 144

Figure 78 Applicant Type

infoed SP	SPIN Search Filters	×	ıc. <u>Siqn Out</u>
Search	Applicant Location Applicant Type Project Type Project Location Citizenship Status This is used to determine which attribute(s) the sponsor will require of an applicant. There are descriptors for both individuals and organizations. Select all that apply. If nothing is selected, the system will not filter on this field.		Keywords 👻
	Applicant Type Options Chosen Applicant Type Restrictions		
Enters	Organization Applicant		?
	Save and Exit Exit 1	,	

This screen is set up similarly to the Applicant Location screen. The top contains the additional filter categories along with the description. You may expand or minimize any of the Applicant Type options by pressing either the Expand
icon or the Collapse
icon.

The applicant types may also be moved interchangeably between the Applicant Type and Chosen Applicant Type Restriction tables by using the four buttons located in the middle of the page or double clicking on the specific applicant type. Once you are finished press either the Save and Exit button or the Exit button.

For Example	You are an individual applicant that is a student, minority, and researcher. You are applying from a professional research organization.
	In order to pull back as many results as possible, you would click Applicant Type in Category Filters and find all the attributes that apply to you or your organization. You would double click the terms and save your filters.
	The search you now conduct will only pull back programs that you are eligible for based on your Applicant Type filters.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 97 of 144



4.3.3 Project Type

The Project Type category filter refers to the type of project the specific sponsor is looking to fund, or what type of work the sponsor is planning to be done by applicants.

Please Note	To use this category correctly, make sure you pick what type of project or work you're looking for. This will only pull back opportunities that are in your scope, and not programs you're not interested in.
----------------	--

To access Project Type (Figure 79), click **SPIN Main Screen > Category Filters > Project Type** or Project Type from within the SPIN Search Filters popup window.

The screen displays a brief Project Type description along with a table for Project Type Options and Chosen Project Type Restrictions. This list is also set up as a hierarchy, and you may use the Expand i icon or the Collapse i icon to expand/collapse the results.

You may also move the project type options between the two tables, by either double clicking the term or using the Back , Forward , Group Back , or Group Forward buttons.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 98 of 144

Figure 79 Project Type

infoEd	SPIN Search Filters			× , Inc. <u>Sign Out</u>
Sear	Applicant Location Applicant Type P This is used to determine what types of projesuccessful applicants. If nothing is selected, Project Type Options	Project Type Project Local ects the sponsor is looking to f the system will not filter on thi	Citizenship Status und, or what type of work the sponsor is intending be done by s field. Chosen Project Type Restrictions	Keywords 🔻
	Endowment Individual Funding Prize or Award Temporary Government Assignments		Project Resources New or Existing Project Targeted Activity Artistic or Cultural Performance Community Outreach Curriculum Development Exhibits/Collections Public Awareness and Education Writing Projects	
			Save and Exit Exit	

Once you are finished, make sure to press either the Save and Exit button or the Exit button.

For Example	You are an applicant that wants to find programs that are involved with reaching out to communities and informing them about Environmental Education.
	You would go to Project Type and choose Community Outreach as your interested project type.
	Only programs that are geared towards applicants interested in Community focused projects will be returned.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 99 of 144



4.3.4 Project Location

Project Location

Figure 80

Another option you may filter your search by is through Project Location. This section is used to determine where the sponsor will allow the work to be carried out. A user will want to pick all the locations they are willing to perform the work.

To access Project Location (Figure 79), click **SPIN Main Screen > Category Filters > Project Location** or Project Location from within the SPIN Search Filters popup window to access this filter option.

arch m	This is used to determine where the sponsor will allow the work to in carrying out an award. If nothing is selected, the system will	to be carried out. You should select all locations that you are willing to travel not filter on this field.
nter sear	Project Location Options Americas Asia Europe Antarctic	Project Location Options Africa Oceania Australia and New Zealand Melanesia Image: Papua New Guinea Solomon Islands Vanuatu Image: Polynesia

The location list functions similarly to the other lists in Category Filters; it give you the ability to maximize/ minimize the locations options by pressing either the Expand 🗄 icon or the Collapse 🖃 icon. From the list, select the location(s) you are willing to travel to in order to complete the work. Once you have selected your location(s), either double click the location to move it to the opposite table, or press the Back 🖛, Forward 🗭, Group Back 📢, or Group Forward 🕑 buttons. Make sure to save your filters before exiting the screen.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 100 of 144



For Example	You decide that you want to do your work somewhere exotic and decide that either Africa or any place in Oceania will be ideal.
	So, you would then double-click those locations and have them transferred to your Project Locations Options.
	You are tired of the cold weather so you would not click Antarctica or Americas.

4.3.5 Citizenship Status

The final option you may use to filter your opportunity results is through Citizenship Status. This section is used to determine if the sponsor has a specific citizenship status requirement for their opportunities.

To access the Citizenship Status filter (Figure 81), click **SPIN Main Screen > Category Filters > Citizenship Status** or Citizenship Status from within the SPIN Search Filters popup window.



Figure 81 Citizenship Status

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 101 of 144



The list contains all the possible citizenship types available. Select the citizenship types that apply to you from Citizenship Options and move them over to Selected Citizenship Types. If you do not select any citizenship, nothing will be filtered for your return opportunities.

Similarly to the other filters, you may double click the specific option to transfer it to the other table, or use the Back (), Forward), Group Back (), or Group Forward) buttons.

Once you are finished, make sure to press either the Save and Exit button or the Exit button.

4.4 Search Options

The main goal of the Search Options section is to provide access to special search options, configurations, or user preferences.

Some examples include: having the ability to expand search terms, include additional opportunities in your search (such as US Federal or Limited Submission), and changing the currency display. Altering any of the available options will change the amount and type of opportunities you receive in your search.

Begin by hovering your mouse over the Search Options section of the tool bar.

The menu expands displaying two options:

- Search Options, and
- Detail View Column Options.



Figure 82		Sea	rch Options Main	Menu			
	Category F	Filters 🔻	Search Options 👻	Searches 💌	Bookmarks 🔻	Funding Guides 👻	Keywords 🔻
		Search O	ptions				
Detail View Column Options							

Clicking on either Options or Detail View Column Options will open popup windows allowing you to further change your search settings and adjust your results.

4.4.1 Search Options

Clicking **Search Options > Search Options** from the tool bar opens the SPIN Search Options popup window (Figure 83).

Figure 83	SPIN Search Option	s Popup
-----------	--------------------	---------

Expand Se	arch Terms via Thesaurus	
🔲 Limit Sear	ch to Newly Created Progams (in days) 7 🗢	
🔲 Limit Sear	ch to Recently Updated Progams (in days) 7 🚖	
Include 🔷 👻	US Federal Opportunities	
Include 🔹 💌	Limited Submission Opportunities	
Exclude 💌	Suspended Opportunities	
United States	Dollars Select Currency Display *	

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 103 of 144



This window offers the ability to adjust multiple default settings:

Expand Search Terms via Thesaurus	This option examines each full text search term and attempts to expand it via an integrated thesaurus in the database. For example, a search for "cancer" will also search for tumors, carcinoma, sarcoma, malignancy, etc. Not all words or phrases expand, but those that do will bring back additional results because of the expanded search. Use this tool to increase the number of results, without having to type in additional search terms.
Limit Search to New Programs	Checking this box will only return opportunities which were created a specific number of days ago. The system defaults to new programs created seven days ago, but you may adjust the number of days; from one day to one year. Use the arrows to the right of the number of days to adjust the creation time, and press the Save and Exit button.
O Uuick Tip	If you check the Limit Search to New Programs checkbox, the Limit Search to Recent Programs checkbox will become grayed out, and unavailable. You cannot use both options to search by. To uncheck either box, just click the check again and it will no longer be selected.
Limit Search to Recent Programs	This option is similar to Limit Search to New Programs, although this pertains to programs that were updated within a specific number of days ago. These programs may have been created more than a year ago, but as long as they were revised within the specified date range, it will pull back in your results. The system defaults to programs updated within seven days, but you may adjust the number of days; from one day to one year. Use the arrows to the right of the number of days to adjust the updated date, and press the Save and Exit button.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 104 of 144



Quick Tip	If you check the Limit Search to Recent Programs checkbox, the Limit Search to New Programs checkbox will become grayed out, and unavailable. You cannot use both options to search by. To uncheck either box, just click the check again and it will no longer be selected.
US Federal Opportunities	By default, any search you perform will return results that contain US Federal Opportunities. Federal Opportunities include any programs created and funded by any government agency. Normally these opportunities do not apply to many individuals because they have very specific requirements, deadlines, and policies. Clicking the search arrow opens the drop-down menu, allowing you to choose to Include, Exclude, or Only find US Federal Opportunities in your search.
Limited Submission Opportunities	Limited Submission Opportunities are opportunities that require internal coordination within an institution, for specific application process. Some sponsors may only accept one application from each organization. If any additional applications are sent, the entire organization will be disqualified. To prevent this from happening, the interested organization will need to coordinate who will send the application. Clicking the sarrow opens the drop-down menu, allowing you to choose to Include, Exclude, or Only find Limited Submission Opportunities in your search.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 105 of 144



Suspended Opportunities	Suspended Opportunities are opportunities that are normally hidden from searches, for multiple reasons such as:
	 They were not offered the previous year;
	They are no longer available;
	 The program was stopped due to funding (but not yet ended by the sponsor); or
	 The sponsor had already picked an individual to participate.
	Although, you may still wish to find information on these programs.
	Opportunities that are, by definition, one time opportunities will not ever be displayed after they are expired, as well as opportunities that have been confirmed as truly defunct by contact with the sponsor.
	The results retrieved for Suspended Opportunities will only be those that we believe have a possibility of becoming available in the future.
	Clicking the marrow opens the drop-down menu, allowing you to choose to Include, Exclude, or Only find Suspended Opportunities in your search.
Quick	Opportunities that were only offered one time will never end up in a search.
Currency Display	Clicking the rarrow next to the default currency listed, opens a drop-down menu containing all of the currency types you may choose to use. When you perform a search, whatever type of currency you pick will display in the results and the detail page. The base currency and amounts will always be available in the full opportunity description.
Please Note	The currency rates are downloaded on a daily bases. They are never older than 24 hours and are calculated by XE.

Once you are finished with the SPIN Search Options popup window, make sure to save your alterations by clicking the Save and Exit button, or press the Exit button to close the window without saving. If you saved the changes, everything will be available in the next search you perform.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 106 of 144



Please Note	At the bottom of the SPIN Search Options popup window is a Terms of Use link.
	Clicking the link opens a 'XE Datafeed Legal Agreement' URL window. This page contains information on the site's terms of use, the universal currency converter, and information on currency charts.
	You may continue to browse the website, although this organization is not directly affiliated with InfoEd.

4.4.2 Detail View Column Options

The Detail View section provides individuals with the ability to decide what type of information they would like to see in their search results, and it what order. This function provides users with a better idea of what an opportunity is about before you open the program's full detail page.

Please Note	Please note that the number of fields returned, especially the large text fields like Objectives, will reduce overall search performance. The system will only retrieve the fields requested, and therefore is faster when retrieving less data.
----------------	---

To access the Detail View Column Options popup window (Figure 84), click **Search Options > Detail View Column Options**.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 107 of 144

Figure 84 Detail View Column Options

he "+" expand icon on the left side of the search re	esults grid shows a detail view. The terms in detail view.	his is used to determine which columns, and in what ord	er, will appear in the
stan new. In rouning is beleated, are system with	or have north in detail view.		
Detail View Column Options		Chosen Detail View Columns	
Follow-up Date	▲ →	Contact Name	
Cost Sharing		Contact Telephone	
	←	Contact Email	
Indirect Costs		Sponsor Website	
Applicant Types	**	Program URL	
Target Groups		·····Deadline Dates (ALL)	
Geographic Locations	44	Synopsis	
Project Types			
Project Locations			
Citizenship Restrictions			
Keywords			
Objectives			
Eligibility			
Funding			
Established Date			
Revised Date			
Sponsor Type			
Address			

The popup window contains two tables: Detail View Column Options and Chosen Detail View Columns. The Detail View Column contains numerous options for what you could include in your search results.

When you have picked the terms (you may choose multiple), either double click the word or use the Back (), Forward), Group Back (), or Group Forward) buttons to move the options to Chosen Detail View Column.

Once you are finished with this window, make sure to save your alterations by clicking the Save and Exit button, or press the Exit button to close the window without saving.

After you've saved these terms, conducting a search will return opportunity results containing details with only the fields selected in the Chosen Detail View Columns section.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 108 of 144
For Example	You decide that when you perform a search and access the expanded view of an opportunity, you only care about the program's Synopsis and Funding Limit.				
	You would use the Group Forward by button to move all values from the Chosen Detail View Columns to the Detail View Columns Options.				
	You would then use the Forward 📄 button to move Synopsis and Funding Limit back over to Chosen Detail View Columns.				
	You Save and Exit ^{Save and Exit} and when you perform a search, and click to expand a program to display it's details, only the Synopsis and Funding Limit will show in the expanded program view (see Figure 85).				

Figure 85 Chosen Detail View Columns

The "+" expand icon on the left side of the search results grid shows a detail view. This is used to determine which columns, and in what order, will appear in the detail view. If nothing is selected, the system will not have items in detail view.

Detail View Column Options		Chosen Detail View Columns
Target Groups	^ →	Synopsis
Geographic Locations		Funding Limit
Project Types	+	
Project Locations		
Citizenship Restrictions	**	
Keywords		
Objectives		
Eligibility		
Established Date		
Revised Date		
Sponsor Type		
Address	-	
Contact Fax Number	-	
Deadline Notes		
Deadline Type		
Funding Duration		
Limited Submission		
Funding	*	
		Save and Exit ?

Notice in the above illustration (Figure 86) that the user has selected to only include Synopsis and Funding Limit as their Chosen Detail View Columns.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 109 of 144



Figure 86 is a representation of a search with the program in expanded view to show the program details. As you can see, there are only two columns displayed - the program's Synopsis and Funding Limit.





4.5 Searches

After you search for an opportunity, especially if you've identified specific filters or criteria to apply to your search, you may want to save or share the search parameters. Saving your search will retain the category filters, search options, and specific parameters. If you're an administrative user, you may also share search information with other individuals in your institution.

Hover your mouse over the Searches section of the tool bar. The menu expands displaying two options – Saved Searches and Shared Searches.

Figure 87	Searches Main Menu
-----------	--------------------

rch Op	otions 🔻	Searches 🔻	В
	Save Sha	ed Searches red Searches	~
			×

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 110 of 144



Please Note	The Saved Searches option will only be available for individuals they are logged in.
	If you are not logged in, the drop-down menu will only show Shared Searches, and you will be unable to save any search conducted.

Clicking either Saved Searches or Shared Searches refreshes the screen, displaying the specific Searches page you were intending to use.

4.5.1 Saved Searches

The first option (if you're logged in) under the Searches tab is Saved Searches. From this section you may: see what searches you've currently saved, the created date, the date the search was last used, and if it was shared. You may also filter the search results and delete any saved searches.

To access the Available Saved Searches screen (Figure 88), click **Searches > Saved Searches**.

info Ed	SPIN'				Jes	ss Gorman InfoEd G	Slobal <u>Sign Out</u>
Available	Saved Searches			Searches 🔻	Bookmarks 👻	Funding Guides 🔻	Keywords 🔻
Run T	Search Name	Created Date	T Date Last Used			T Shared	T Delete
	Frog Opportunities	25-Apr-2012					×
	Transportation Opportunities	25-Apr-2012					×
S	< 1 → H					Displaying	items 1 - 2 of 2
							Save Changes

Figure 88 Available Saved Searches Screen

The screen opens to a display of any and all searches that you have saved.

Please Note	Please note that after loading a saved search, its criteria, including category filters and such, can be modified and it will not alter the saved criteria. After modification, the user may then save the search as their own, or overwrite the original one if the original one was their own search

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 111 of 144



The following information is available on the Saved Searches screen:

Run	By running a search, you are pulling back the search criteria you previously saved. The results will not always be the same, but the search criteria will be the same as when you first conducted the search.				
	By running a previously saved search, you are re-evaluating that search's criteria (search parameters, category filters, and search options) against the current data.				
	If the user has included the "Limit Search to Recently Updated Records" option on the SPIN Search Options Popup (Figure 83), they will almost always see entirely different results even though the search criteria has been saved				
	Clicking the Run button opens a Load Selected Criteria popup window.				
	You may either choose to Load Search (in which case the search will run, but you will lose any current settings (such as filters or search options) or you may Cancel the request.				
	Please see the bottom of this section for more information on working with the page after you've run the search.				
Filter	This button functions the same as the Filter button in the Basic Search section. Please see Section 4.1, Basic Search for more information on this button.				
	You may filter each column, with the exception of the Run and Delete columns, to help you find a Saved search. Once you filter the search, the Saved Search list will refresh according to your filter, displaying the new information.				
	To return to the previous screen, press Searches > Saved Searches.				
Search Name	This is the title you applied to your saved search.				
	This is the same title you entered when you were saving your search on the main page.				
	You may adjust the title by clicking the actual title, which will open a text box. Adjust the title, and then click anywhere on the screen. By default, the titles display according to the created date, but you may adjust the list by clicking the reaction or the reaction.				
	Click the title and the arrow icons will appear, allowing you to adjust as necessary. When you are finished with the adjustments, click				
	the Save Changes button at the bottom of the screen.				



Created Date	This is the date you saved your search. This is a non-editable field, but may be reordered by pressing the field icon or the field. You may also filter the category by pressing the field.					
Date Last Used	This is the date you last accessed the Saved Search.					
	The field will update every time you work with the Saved search.					
	This is a non-editable field, but may be reordered by pressing the <a> icon or the <a> icon.					
	You may also filter the category by pressing the T icon.					
Shared	This column will only be available for Administrators.					
	By sharing a Saved Search, additional people may view the search results, category filters, and specific search information.					
	Click the check box next to the specific Saved Search you wish you					
	share and press the Save Changes button.					
	The search you shared will display on the Shared Searches page. Please see Section 4.5.2, Shared Searches for more information.					
	Click the check box a second time to take the search off the Shared list.					
Delete	You may delete any search you've saved.					
	Click the \times icon next to the specific saved search you wish you delete.					
	A popup window confirming the pending delete will appear.					
	Press OK to continue with the delete, Cancel you end the process.					
	Once you delete a search, the screen will refresh without the Saved search.					
Critical Warning	This is a permanent step, and cannot be reversed. Make sure you are only deleting Searches you are positive you do not need.					
Refresh	Clicking the icon refreshes the Saved Searches screen.					
	If you've made any changes and the page did not refresh, click this button and the page will reload, displaying the new/adjusted information.					

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 113 of 144



Page Bar K ∢ 1 ▶ H	If you have entries on additional pages, you may access the other page by clicking any of the arrows. You may also click the specific page number you're trying to access.
Save Button	After you've made any changes, make sure you press the Save Changes button to retain your work.

After you click the button, a Load Selected Criteria popup window (Figure 89) will open inquiring whether you are sure you would like to continue loading the search as this action will clear any set search criteria or category filters. Also, your grid settings (including columns chosen in the Detail View Column Options screen) will be lost if you proceed.

Figure 89 Load Selected Criteria Popup

Load Selected Criteria	×
Are you sure you want to load this search? This w currently set search criteria or category filters. Grid will not be retained.	ill clear any I settings
Load Search Cancel	

If you wish to continue with the search, click the Load Search button.

To cancel the request, click the Cancel button which will return you back to the Available Saved Searches screen (Figure 88).

Continuing with the search will bring you to the SPIN Main Screen with the Results Returned Section displaying all the searches for the selected Saved Search.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 114 of 144



Figure 90 Search Results

info	Cassandra Morrissey InfoEd International, Inc. Sign Ou										
			Category Filters 🔻	Options 🔻	Searches	 Bookmarks 	Funding Guides 🔻	Keywords 🔻			
earch mode: BASIC											
Biology	Biology X Search 💾 ?										
Results Displaying: 3671 (Results Filtered: 2) Applicant Location Applicant Type Project Type Project Location Citizenship Status Export											
Draga	a column head	er and drop it here to group by that colun	n								
	SPIN ID T	Opportunity Title	Sponsor Name	Sponsor N	lumber T	Deadline Date T	Funding Amount*	Bookmark			
+	00020	Fellowship Project (JPFP)	Space Administration	NNA10335	625C	21-May-2010	7,200,000.00 USD	+			
٠	00024	Research Project Grants	Kidney Health New Zealand			01-May-2011	0.00 USD	+			
٠	00047	Ames Research CenterUnsolicited Proposals	National Aeronautics & Space Administration				0.00 USD	+			
٠	00069	SSI/ISID Fellowship Program	International Society for Infectious Diseases			01-Apr-2011	0.00 USD	+			
+	00085	Neville Butler Memorial Prize	Longview			24-Jan-2011	9,924.28 USD	+			
٠	00101	Summer Research Program	Kentucky Biomedical Research Infrastructure Network			01-Mar-2011	35,000.00 USD	+			
٠	00146	Postoctoral Fellowships	St. Jude Children's Research Hospital				0.00 USD	+			
Ŧ	00148	New Investigator Research Grant to Promote Diversity (NIRGD)	Alzheimer's Association			03-Jan-2011	100,000.00 USD	+			
+	00151	Postdoctoral Research Fellowships	Cystic Fibrosis Foundation			07-Sep-2011	42,500.00 USD	+			
٠	00152	Mentored New Investigator Research Grants to Promote Diversity (MNIRGD)	Alzheimer's Association			03-Jan-2011	170,000.00 USD	+			
S	Image: Weight and State S										

For more information on this search results grid and the Basic search mode, please refer to Section 4.1.3, Results Returned and Section 4.1.1, Performing A Basic Search.

4.5.2 Shared Searches

While using the new SPIN module, whether you're logged-in or not, you have the ability to access any shared searches within your institution.

The purpose of a shared search is to conveniently distribute search results (including any set category filters or specific options) to a group of people. This allows multiple individuals to receive the same search results, without creating extra work or the possibility of different results.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 115 of 144



To access the Shared Searches screen (Figure 91), click **Searches > Shared Searches**.

	Jess Gorman InfoEd Global Sto						
Availa	ble	Shared Searches	Searches 👻	Bookmarks 👻 Funding Guides 👻 Keywords 🤻			
Dun	-	Occurs Name	Successful Data	×	V Obrasil Da		
FUN	Ì	1 - Non-US Citizen Postdoctoral	12-Feb-2012	24-Apr-2012	Jetter, David		
		5 - STEM	13-Feb-2012	13-Feb-2012	Jetter, David		
		6 - Limited Submission Renewable Energy	13-Feb-2012	20-Apr-2012	Jetter, David		
		Medical Education, Upcoming	14-Feb-2012	20-Apr-2012	Jetter, David		
		Dept Army with Medical	07-Mar-2012	20-Apr-2012	Jetter, David		
		Chem E Adv Search	14-Mar-2012	20-Apr-2012	Jetter, David		
5	н	< 1 → H			Displaying items 1 - 6 of 6		

Figure 91 Available Shared Searches

This page looks and functions very similar to Saved Searches (Section 4.5.1, Saved Searches). You may filter the categories, rearrange the list, and toggle between pages. The only addition to this screen is the Shared By column. This column displays the name of the individual who shared the search.

Please You on the prevention of the prevention o	do not have the ability to adjust the Search Name, as you did e Saved Searches page. This helps to maintain unison and ent any confusion.
--	---

Just as it does in Saved Searches, after you click the Run button, a Load Selected Criteria popup window (Figure 89) will open inquiring whether you are sure you would like to continue loading the search as this action will clear any set search criteria or category filters.

Also, your grid settings (including columns chosen in the Detail View Column Options screen) will be lost if you proceed.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 116 of 144

Figure 92 Load Selected Criteria Popup

Load Selected Criteria	×
Are you sure you want to load this search? This will clear a currently set search criteria or category filters. Grid settings will not be retained.	iny S
Load Search Cancel	

If you wish to continue with the search, click the Load Search button.

To cancel the request, click the Cancel button which will return you back to the Available Shared Searches screen (Figure 91).

Continuing with the search will bring you to the SPIN Main Screen with the Results Returned Section displaying the programs for the selected Shared Search.

The following illustration (Figure 93) is a list of Available Shared Searches. As an example, we have decided to load the search for Non-US Citizen Postdoctoral opportunities shared by David Jetter.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 117 of 144

Figure 93 Loading A Shared Search

ilab	le Shared Searches				Search	nes 🔻	Bookmarks 👻	Fund	ling Guides 🔻	Keywords 👻
un (Tearch Name	т	Created D	ate	T	Last	Jsed	т	Shared By	т
	1 - Non-US Citizen Postdoctoral		12-Feb-20	12		25-Ap	r-2012		Jetter, David	
	5-STEM		13-Feb-20	12		25-Ap	r-2012		Jetter, David	
	6 - Limited Submission Renewable Energy		13-Feb-20	12		20-Ap	r-2012		Jetter, David	
	Medical Education, Upcoming		14-Feb-2	Load Select	ed Crite	eria			×	
	Dept Army with Medical		07-Mar-2(
	Chem E Adv Search		14-Mar-20	Are you sure you want to load this search? This will clear any currently set search criteria or category filters. Grid settings						
	(d - d) 1 (b - b)			will not be re	etained.					items 1 - 6 of 6
										info
							Load Se	arch	Cancel	G 🔹 🔍 100%

After you click the Run button and then load the search Load Search, the same results David received when he performed his initial search for Non-US Citizen Postdoctoral opportunities will be displayed on the screen (Figure 94).

Figure 94 Shared Search Results

osto	loctoral					X Search	?
sult	's Found: 2176		A	pplicant Location F	Project Location Citizen	ship Status Clear Filte	rs Export 👻
rag	a column head	er and drop it here to group by tha	t column				
	SPIN ID T	Opportunity Title	Sponsor Name 🍸	Sponsor Number	T Deadline Date T	Funding Amount*	Bookmark
±	04607	Kauffman Foundation Emerging Postdoctoral Entrepreneur Award	National Postdoctoral Association		28-Nov-2011	2,500.00 USD	+
±	14145	UC MEXUS - CONACYT Postdoctoral Research Fellowships	University of California Institute for Mexico and the United States		05-Mar-2012	47,940.00 USD	+
+	17708	Postdoctoral Researcher's Project	Academy of Finland		30-Sep-2011	0.00 USD	+
+	22224	Research Training Groups in the Mathematical Sciences	Directorate for Mathematics	11-540	05-Jun-2012	2,500,000.00 USD	+

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 118 of 144



From here, you may filter the information, view specific opportunities, or bookmark programs. Please see Section 4.1.6, Filtering Search Results, or Section 4.1.7, Viewing The Program Details, and Section 4.1.10, Bookmarking A Specific Program for more information.

4.6 Bookmarks

Another way to save and revisit specific programs it to bookmark the opportunity. There are multiple places within the system where you have the ability to bookmark a program; either from the search results grid or the detail page for a specific opportunity.

Whenever you bookmark a specific program, you may group specific programs into their own list, allowing you to view group and efficiently find programs.

The Bookmark section functions in much the same way as the Saved searches section, but the primary objective in bookmarking is to allow you to group specific programs you've selected, while the goal of saving a search is to save time and foster consistency by allowing you to reuse search parameters.

Administrators also have the option to share opportunities that they've bookmarked. Just like sharing searches, sharing a bookmarked program (or group) allows multiple users to view specific programs that an administrator has picked. This helps eliminate unnecessary work and prevent discrepancies between users.

If you hover your mouse over the Bookmarks section of the yellow tool bar, you will see that the Bookmarks menu expands displaying two options – Bookmarked Opportunities and Shared Opportunities.

Please Note	The ability to bookmark programs and the Bookmark Opportunities section will only be available for individuals who are logged in.
	Like Shared Searches, if you are not logged in, the drop-down menu will only show Shared Opportunities, and you will be unable to bookmark any program.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 119 of 144



Figure 95 Bookmarks Main Menu



Clicking either Bookmarked Opportunities or Shared Opportunities refreshes the screen, displaying the specific page you were intending to use.

4.6.1 Bookmarked Opportunities

The Bookmarked Opportunities section provides logged-in users with the ability to group multiple programs together without having to constantly sort through a long list (like you may have to when you save an entire results list).

A single program may fall into multiple groups, allowing you to create distinct groups. Although you are not able to do much on the screen (with the exception of adding programs and groups), it's a convenient way to organize and group information for future use.

To access the Bookmarked Opportunities screen (Figure 96), click **Bookmarks > Bookmarked Opportunities**.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 120 of 144

Figure 96 Bookmarked Opportunities

Infoed SPIN		Jes	s Gorman InfoEd	Global <u>Sign Out</u>
Bookmarked Opportunities	Searches 🔻	Bookmarks 👻	Funding Guides 🔻	Keywords 🔻
Add New Funding Group				Export
Group Name			T Shared	🛙 Delete
Solar Power			✓	× ^
Transportation Railroad				×
				*

The following functionality is present on the Bookmarked Opportunities screen:

Add New Funding Group	Clicking the Add New Funding Group button opens an Add New Group popup window (Figure 97).
	From this window you may either create a new group by typing in the blank text box or click the ricon to choose from a pre-existing title.
	Once you have chosen your title, you may decide to share the Bookmark. Please see 4.6.2, Shared Opportunities for more information.
	When you are finished, click either the Save Changes button or the Cancel button. The popup window will close and the new group will be listed under Group Name.
Please Note	You may change the name of a group you created by click the name. This will create a text box with the current name listed. Make your modifications and click anywhere on the screen to save the changes.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 121 of 144



Export	Clicking Export allows you to transfer the Bookmarked Opportunities to either a Word or Excel document. Just as described in Section 4.1.11, Exporting Your Search Results To Word or Excel, once you click your chosen format, a popup window confirming the step will open. Press the OK button and the results will export to the specified program.
(Expand)	 Pressing this icon expands the specific group's information. All of the programs you've bookmarked under that specific group will display. The SPIN ID number, title, sponsor information, deadline date and last revised date will all be available. From this section, you may filter the results, or delete a specific program from the list. You may also view a certain program's detail information by clicking the Opportunity Title link (Please Section 4.1.9, View More Detailed Opportunity Information for more details on this
	To minimize the selection, click the \Box icon.
(Filter)	This filter icon functions just like the other filter icons within the system, allowing you to utilize a drop down menu, choose the filter, type in the specification and click Filter. The results list will refresh according to your decision, displaying the new information. Please see Section 4.1.6, Filtering Search Results for more information on the filter functionality.
Shared	 Checking the Shared checkbox shares the bookmark group. Once you save the changes, the shared group will appear on the Shared Opportunities page. Click the Shared a second time to take the group off the Shared list. Please see Section 4.6.2, Shared Opportunities for more information.

SPIN USER GUIDE, *VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc.* Page 122 of 144



Delete ×	Clicking the Delete × icon located at the end of the group line on the main Bookmarked Opportunities page to delete the specific group. When clicked, all the programs in the group will be deleted from the list, and it will no longer be available on either the Bookmarked Opportunities page or the Shared Opportunities page. There is also another Delete × icon next to every program within the specific group when you expand the group. If you click on the , Delete × icon beside a select program, that program will be deleted from the bookmarked group.
Critical Warning	Deleting a bookmark group and/or deleting a bookmarked program are both permanent steps, and cannot be reversed. Make sure you are only deleting Programs/Groups you are positive you do not need.
(Refresh)	Clicking the icon refreshes the screen. If you've made any changes and the page did not automatically refresh, click this button and the page will reload, displaying the new/adjusted information.

Clicking the Add New Funding Group button on the Bookmarked Opportunities screen opens an Add New Group popup (Figure 97).

Figure 97Add New Group Popup

infoed SPIN'			Je	ss Gorman InfoEd	Global <u>Sign Out</u>
Bookmarked Opportunities		Searches 🔻	Bookmarks 🔻	Funding Guides 🔻	Keywords 👻
Add New Funding Group					Event
	Add New Group	×			Export
Group Name				T Shared	T Delete
No records to display.	Name	-			*
	Shared				
	Save Cha	inges Cancel			

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 123 of 144



From this popup you may either create a new bookmark group by typing in the blank text box or click the ricon to choose from a pre-existing title.

Once you have chosen your title, you may decide to share the Bookmark by clicking on the Shared checkbox.. Please see 4.6.2, Shared Opportunities for more information.

When you are finished adding a new group or selecting a pre-existing group, click either the Cancel button to return to the Bookmarked Opportunities with no changes saved or the Save Changes button to save the new group.

Once the Save Changes button is clicked, the popup will close and the new group will be listed under Group Name.

For Example	So let's assume you wanted to find programs about North America that were for students with a deadline after today.
	After searching, you will find a variety of programs containing multitude amounts of unnecessary information.
	You search through numerous list and eventually narrow your program list to 20.
	To save time and effort, you decide to bookmark the programs from each list under a single group.
	You may now visit the Bookmark page at anytime and work with the specific programs you've added to the list. You may continue to add programs to your group over time, allowing you to modify your results based on your interest and needs.

4.6.2 Shared Opportunities

Sharing bookmarked programs is a helpful tool because it allows a single user to distribute the same saved group of programs to multiple individuals. This gives additional users access to specific programs without having to perform multiple searches or worry about setting category filters.



The only people that may share opportunities are Administrators. Although, anyone may view and use the shared opportunities.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 124 of 144



To access the Shared Opportunities screen (Figure 98), click **Bookmarks > Shared Opportunities**.

The Shared Opportunities screen will appear displaying all the groups you've shared.

njoed SPN		Je	ss Gorman InfoEd G	llobal <u>Sign Out</u>
Shared Opportunities	Searches 🔻	Bookmarks 🔻	Funding Guides 🔻	Keywords 🔻
				Export
Group Name				Т
STTR or SBIR				^
Chemistry Department - Fellowships				
Chemistry Department - Equipment Grants				
Chemical Engineering Awards				
				Ŧ
ित्र				

Figure 98 Shared Opportunities

Just as you may expand an opportunity to gain more detailed information in the Results

Returned section of a search, you may also choose to utilize the Expand ¹ button next to a specific Shared Opportunity Group to view the program(s) included in the group (Figure 99).



Figure 99 Shared Opportunities – Viewing Shared Programs

Ed	SPIN'							Jess	Gorma	n Ir	nfoEd Global	<u>Sign</u>	Out
ared Opportunities Bookmarks Funding Guides Keywords													
												Exp	port
	Group Name											T	
1	STTR or SBIR												^
	SPIN ID T	Opportunity Title	T	Sponsor Name	T	Sponsor Number	Т	Deadline	Date	τı	ast Revised	т	
	01097	Tools for Germplasm Cryopreservation (STTR [R41/R42])		National Center for Research Resources/NIH/DHHS		PA-09-054		07-Jan-2	012	C	07-Mar-2011		
	22600	Adaptation Science Fellowships		African Climate Change Fellowship Program				05-Jun-2	011	1	18-May-2011		
	S												
-	Chemistry Dep	artment - Fellowships											
-	Chemistry Dep	artment - Equipment Grants											
1	Chemical Engi	neering Awards											
													-
à													
		Group Name Group Name STTR or SBIR SPIN ID T 01097 22500 Chemistry Dep Chemistry Dep	Croup Name Croup Name STR or SBR SPIN ID T Opportunity Title 01097 Tools for Germplaam Cruopreservation (STR JR4 1,R42)) 22600 Adaptation Science Fellowships Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemistry Department - Equipment Grants Chemical Engineering Awards	From From	STR or SBR STR or SBR STR or SBR SPIN ID Opportunity Title T Sponsor Name National Center for Research Resources/NHHDHHS Z2600 Adaptation Science Fellowships Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemical Engineering Awards	Group Name Group Name STR or SBR SPIN ID T Opportunity Title T odjs for Germplasm Chopreservation (STIR [R41/R42]) National Center for Research Resources/NHIDHHS 22600 Adaptation Science Fellowships African Climate Change Fellowship Program Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemical Engineering Awards	Server Searches • Ba Group Name STIR or SBR STIR or SBR SPIN ID • Opportunity Ttile • • Sponsor Name • • 01097 • Tools for Germplasm Cropreservation (STTR [R41/R42]) • National Center for Research Resources/NiH/DHHS • PA-09-054 • 22600 • Adaptation Science Fellowships • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • <th>Group Name Searches ~ Bookm Group Name STIR or SBR SPIN ID T Opportunity Title T Sponsor Name T Sponsor Number T 01097 Tools for Germplasm Chopreservation (STTR (R41/R421) National Center for Research Resources/NIH/DHHS PA-09-054 22600 Adaptation Science Fellowships African Climate Change Fellowship Program PA-09-054 Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemical Engineering Awards</th> <th>Coroup Name Searches × Bookmarks × STR or SBR STR or SBR SPINID T Opportunity Title T Sponsor Name T Sponsor Number T Deadline 01097 Tools for Germplasm Chopreservation (STR IR41/R42)) National Center for Research Resources/NHD/HHS PA-09-054 07-Jan-2 22600 Adaptation Science Fellowships African Climate Change Fellowship Program 05-Jun-2 Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemistry Department - Squipment Grants Chemical Engineering Awards Chemical Engineering Awards Stressen Change Fellowship Stressen Change Fellowship</th> <th>Coroup Name Starches * Bookmarks * Funding STR or SBR SPINID * Opportunity Title * Sponsor Name * Deadline Date 01097 Tools for Germplasm Chopreservation (STR [R41/R42]) National Center for Research Resources/NHHDHHS PA-09-054 07-Jan-2012 01097 Tools for Germplasm Chopreservation (STR [R41/R42]) National Center for Research Resources/NHHDHHS PA-09-054 07-Jan-2012 05-000 Adaptation Science Fellowships African Climate Change Fellowship Program 05-Jun-2011 Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemistry Department - Fellowships - - Chemical Engineering Awards Chemical Engineering Awards - -</th> <th>Corpup Name Starches v Bookmarks v Funding Gut STR or SBR SPINID v Opportunity Title v Sponsor Name v Deadline Date v 01097 Tools for Germplasm Chopreservation (STR [R41:R42]) National Center for Research Resources/NiHD/HHS PA-09-054 07-Jan-2012 0 01097 Tools for Germplasm Chopreservation (STR [R41:R42]) National Center for Research Resources/NiHD/HHS PA-09-054 07-Jan-2012 0 0 Chemistry Department - Fellowships African Climate Change Fellowship Program 05-Jun-2011 0 0 Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemical Engineering Awards V V V</th> <th>SPIN Less Gorma InfoEd Global ared Opportunities Searches v Bookmarks v Funding Guides v Key Group Name STR or SBIR Str or SBIR Str opportunity Title V Sponsor Name V Deadline Date V Lest Revised 01077 Tools for Germplasm Chopresenvation (STIR (R4)(R42)) National Center for Research Resources/NHI/DHHS PA09-064 07-Jan-2012 07-Mar-2011 18-May-2011 0 Chemistry Department - Fellowships African Climate Change Fellowship Program 05-Jun-2011 18-May-2011 18-May-2011 0 Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemistry Department - Fellowships U U U U U 0 Chemistry Department - Fellowships U</th> <th>Very Jess Gorman InfeEd Global Signation ared Opportunities Searches v Bookmarks v Funding Guides v Keywords Group Name T STIR or SBIR Stirk of Opportunity Title Y Sponsor Name Y Sponsor Number Y Deadline Date Y Last Revised T 10107 Topportunity Title Y Sponsor Name Y Sponsor Number Y Deadline Date Y Last Revised T 2600 Adaptation Science Fellowships Artican Climate Change Fellowship Program 05-Jun-2011 18-Hay-2011 18-Hay-2011</th>	Group Name Searches ~ Bookm Group Name STIR or SBR SPIN ID T Opportunity Title T Sponsor Name T Sponsor Number T 01097 Tools for Germplasm Chopreservation (STTR (R41/R421) National Center for Research Resources/NIH/DHHS PA-09-054 22600 Adaptation Science Fellowships African Climate Change Fellowship Program PA-09-054 Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemical Engineering Awards	Coroup Name Searches × Bookmarks × STR or SBR STR or SBR SPINID T Opportunity Title T Sponsor Name T Sponsor Number T Deadline 01097 Tools for Germplasm Chopreservation (STR IR41/R42)) National Center for Research Resources/NHD/HHS PA-09-054 07-Jan-2 22600 Adaptation Science Fellowships African Climate Change Fellowship Program 05-Jun-2 Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemistry Department - Squipment Grants Chemical Engineering Awards Chemical Engineering Awards Stressen Change Fellowship Stressen Change Fellowship	Coroup Name Starches * Bookmarks * Funding STR or SBR SPINID * Opportunity Title * Sponsor Name * Deadline Date 01097 Tools for Germplasm Chopreservation (STR [R41/R42]) National Center for Research Resources/NHHDHHS PA-09-054 07-Jan-2012 01097 Tools for Germplasm Chopreservation (STR [R41/R42]) National Center for Research Resources/NHHDHHS PA-09-054 07-Jan-2012 05-000 Adaptation Science Fellowships African Climate Change Fellowship Program 05-Jun-2011 Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemistry Department - Fellowships - - Chemical Engineering Awards Chemical Engineering Awards - -	Corpup Name Starches v Bookmarks v Funding Gut STR or SBR SPINID v Opportunity Title v Sponsor Name v Deadline Date v 01097 Tools for Germplasm Chopreservation (STR [R41:R42]) National Center for Research Resources/NiHD/HHS PA-09-054 07-Jan-2012 0 01097 Tools for Germplasm Chopreservation (STR [R41:R42]) National Center for Research Resources/NiHD/HHS PA-09-054 07-Jan-2012 0 0 Chemistry Department - Fellowships African Climate Change Fellowship Program 05-Jun-2011 0 0 Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemical Engineering Awards V V V	SPIN Less Gorma InfoEd Global ared Opportunities Searches v Bookmarks v Funding Guides v Key Group Name STR or SBIR Str or SBIR Str opportunity Title V Sponsor Name V Deadline Date V Lest Revised 01077 Tools for Germplasm Chopresenvation (STIR (R4)(R42)) National Center for Research Resources/NHI/DHHS PA09-064 07-Jan-2012 07-Mar-2011 18-May-2011 0 Chemistry Department - Fellowships African Climate Change Fellowship Program 05-Jun-2011 18-May-2011 18-May-2011 0 Chemistry Department - Fellowships Chemistry Department - Fellowships U U U U U 0 Chemistry Department - Fellowships U	Very Jess Gorman InfeEd Global Signation ared Opportunities Searches v Bookmarks v Funding Guides v Keywords Group Name T STIR or SBIR Stirk of Opportunity Title Y Sponsor Name Y Sponsor Number Y Deadline Date Y Last Revised T 10107 Topportunity Title Y Sponsor Name Y Sponsor Number Y Deadline Date Y Last Revised T 2600 Adaptation Science Fellowships Artican Climate Change Fellowship Program 05-Jun-2011 18-Hay-2011 18-Hay-2011

You can further click on the Opportunity Title of any program in the group list to view the program's details.

See Section 4.1.7, Viewing The Program Details for more information about this functionality.

4.7 Funding Guides

The Funding Guide section of the SPIN module provides users with a list of US federal opportunities that are currently available. Although these programs may appear in a search, this section provides users with a fast and efficient way to find specific federal programs or contracts. Most of the results are canned reports (reports that cannot be altered), but still provide users with an overview of the relevant program information.

Hovering your mouse over the Funding Guides section of the yellow tool bar displays two sections- Browse FedBizOpps (US Federal Business Opportunities) and US Federal Register Guide (Figure 100).

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 126 of 144



Figure 100 Funding Guide Main Page



Clicking Browse FedBizOpps (US Federal Business Opportunities) refreshes the screen, displaying all of the contract opportunities available, while clicking Federal Register Guide displays programs from the US Federal Register Guide.

4.7.1 Browse Federal Business Opportunities

The Browse FedBizOpps (US Federal Business Opportunities) page (Figure 101) displays a variation of contract opportunities. These opportunities are often not listed on Grants.gov and have strict eligibility requirements. Although these programs may be found by conducting a regular search, this section provides users with an easier way to view all available contract opportunities from the US government.

Please Note	Please note that these US Federal Business Opportunities records will return as part of a regular SPIN Search as well, and that this functionality is intended to be provided as a convenient "canned report."
----------------	---

Click **Funding Guides > Browse FedBizOpps** to access the main FedBizOpps screen (Figure 101).



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 127 of 144

Figure 101 FedBizOpps

infoed SPIN							Jes	s Gorman	InfoEd Glo	ıbal <u>Siqn O</u>	<u>Dut</u>
US Federal Bu	usine	ess Opportunities			Searches 🔻	Book	marks 💌	Funding G	uides 🔻	Keywords 👻	
										Expo	ort
👻 Last Update	d ×										
SPIN ID	т	Opportunity Title	Sponsor Name 🛛 🕇	Sponsor Number 💦 🍸	Deadline Date	T	Funding A	mount 🛛 🕇	Last Upo	lated 🔺 🛛 🕇	r
– 🗸 Last Upda	ated: 2	5-Apr-2012									7
28336		RFPAdvanced Propulsion Concepts and Cycles	Department of the Air Force	BAA-12-03-PKP	25-Jun-2012				25-Apr-2	012	
28337		RFPIsotope Reaction of Hydrazine Reactions	National Aeronautics & Space Administration	NNK12432595Q	09-May-2012				25-Apr-2	012	
28335		RFPDoD SBIR Program	Federal One-Time Opportunity	DoDSBIR2012-2	27-Jun-2012				25-Apr-2	012	Т
28000		RFP NICHD Contraceptive Clinical Trials Network - Male Sites	National Institute of Child Health and Human Development/NIH/DHHS	NIH-NICHD-CRHB-2012 -04					25-Apr-2	012	
28002		RFP – SBSA – Statistical and Clinical Coordinating Center	National Institute of Child Health and Human Development/NIH/DHHS	NIH-NICHD-CRHB-2012 -05					25-Apr-2	012	
28004		RFP Amendment Chainsaw Training	Corporation for National and Community Service	CNSHQ12T0014					25-Apr-2	012	
27657		RFP Environmental Finance Education & Training	Environmental Protection Agency	RFQ-PR-OCFO-11- 00303	11-Jun-2012				25-Apr-2	012	
28338		RFPUSAID/Peru New Alternatives Program	U.S. Agency for International Development	SOL-527-12-000013	16-May-2012				25-Apr-2	012	
– 🗸 Last Upda	ated: 2	4-Apr-2012									-
27857		RFP Amendment Integrated Computational Methods	Department of the Air Force	BAA-12-09-PKM	22-Mav-2012				24-Anr-2	012	

Since this page is preconfigured, you are unable to run any searches for specific items.

The few options you have on the screen include:

Last Updated Last Updated X	When the screen opens, the most recently updated programs appear first. Clicking the Last Updated × button changes the order and places the oldest programs first. If you click the button again, the original order is restored.
Export	Clicking Export allows you to transfer the FedBizOpps programs to either a Word or Excel document. Just as described in Section 4.1.11, Exporting Your Search Results To Word or Excel, once you click your chosen format, a popup window confirming the step will open. Press the OK button and the results will export to the specified program.
Reordering Columns	You may reorder the column list by clicking a specific column header (such as Sponsor Name, SPIN ID, Deadline Date, etc) and dragging it to the new location. Please see Section 4.1.5.1, Modifying the Order of the Columns for more information on this functionality.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 128 of 144



Grouping Columns	You may group columns by clicking a specific column header (such as Sponsor Name, SPIN ID, Deadline Date, etc) and dragging it to the table header as described in Section 4.1.5.2, Grouping by the Columns.
Filter	Click the T button next to the specific category you wish to filter.
	Using the drop down menu, choose the filter, type in the specification and click Filter.
	The results list will refresh according to your decision, displaying the new information.
	Please see Section 4.1.6, Filtering Search Results for more information on this functionality.
Opportunity Title link	To view more detailed information of a specific program; click the link of the specific program under the column Opportunity Title.
	This will open the Opportunity Information popup window (Figure 37); displaying the specific programs details including the program's URL where you may be able begin the application process.
	Please see Section 0,
	Viewing The Program Details for more information on this functionality.
Refresh	Clicking the icon refreshes the screen. If you've made any changes and the page did not refresh, click this button and the page will reload, displaying the new/adjusted information.
Page Bar	If you have entries on additional pages, you may access the other page by clicking any of the arrows. You may also click the specific page number you're trying to access.
Result Number Display	By default, 10 results display per page. By clicking the 10 - button, you may choose to display a varied number of entries.

4.7.2 US Federal Register Guide

The US Federal Register Guide section of the SPIN module provides users with an overview of funding selections from the Federal Register. Since the original Federal Register can be very large and daunting, this section contains specific opportunities, which are applicable to many users.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 129 of 144



By default, the last four weeks of programs are listed on this page, allowing users to browse through multiple programs, without having to sort through pages of programs that may be useless or out of date.

Since this section is preconfigured, users are unable to search for specific programs (by using filters or keywords), but they are still provided with detailed information that is easy

to find and useful by simply viewing the program details utilizing the Expand [±] button beside each weekly Register listing.

Click **Funding Guides > US Federal Register Guide** to access the US Federal Register Guide screen (Figure 102).

infol	get spin"		Je	ss Gorman InfoEd GI	obal <u>Sign Out</u>
US F	ederal Register Guide	Searches 💌	Bookmarks 💌	Funding Guides 🔻	Keywords 🔻
This	uide contains a summary of opportunities and valuable information posted in the United States Federal Register over the past four weeks.				
	Federal Register Weekly Reference Guide - Week of 04-16-12 - 04-20-12				
	Federal Register Weekly Reference Guide - Week of 04-16-12 - 04-20-12				
*	Federal Register Weekly Reference Guide - Week of 04-09-12 - 04-13-12				
G	Federal Register Weekly Reference Guide - Week of 04-02-12 - 04-06-12				
	SYNOPSIS: FEDERAL REGISTER ANNOUNCEMENTS Friday, April 6 2012:				
	AGRICULTURAL MARKETING SERVICE/DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE announced the availability of funding under the Farmer's Market Promotion Program Program #: 87218.	m (pp. 20779-81)). Deadline Date: 05	5/21/12. Contact: 202-72	0- 0933. SPIN
	INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SCIENCES/DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION announced a modification to Education Research and Special Education Research G Contact: Emily Doolittle@ed.gov. SPIN Program #: 27506.	Grant Programs (p	op. 20802-20805). I	Deadline Dates: 06/21/1:	2, 09/20/12.
	OBJECTIVES: ****APPLICANTS SHOULD CONTACT THE SPONSORING AGENCIES DIRECTLY****				
	FEDERAL REGISTER ANNOUNCEMENTS FOR 04-02-12 - 04-06-12:				

Figure 102 US Federal Register Guide

At the top of the US Federal Register Guide screen, there is a <u>United States Federal</u> <u>Register</u> link. Users may click on this link to visit the Federal Register Guide main site http://id.loc.gov.

While here, they may search for programs using their system. So SPIN actually affords the user with two methodologies for accessing this information; the SPIN Federal Guide Listing (the four week overview of specific programs) and access to the actual Federal Register Guide in its entirety on the federal site (additional programs but unorganized).

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 130 of 144



4.8 Keywords

A final way to search for programs within the SPIN system is to use specific keywords.

This section provides access to search/browse SPIN's controlled vocabulary list, containing over 300,000 terms. The keyword section is particularly valuable because it gives users the ability to pull back different results, using different keywords. This creates a broader search range, and returns additional programs.



To access the Keyword section, hover your mouse over Keyword in the yellow tool bar. The dropdown menu will display three options.

Figure 103 Keywords Main Menu

 Funding Guides < Keywords Search Keyword Groups Shared Keyword Groups 	Jess Gorm	an InfoEd G	lobal <u>Siqn Ou</u>
Search Keyword Groups Shared Keyword Groups	Fundi	ng Guides 🔻	Keywords 🔻
Keyword Groups Shared Keyword Groups		Search	
Shared Keyword Groups		Keyword G	roups
		Shared Ke	yword Groups

From this menu, users may choose to Search using keywords, work with Keyword Groups, or access Shared Keyword Groups.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 131 of 144



Please Note	Although anyone may search using a keyword and view shared keyword groups, only logged-in users and administrators may save keyword groups.
	Additionally, sharing a keyword is only available for administrators.

4.8.1 Search

Searching for a keyword is beneficial because it helps expand a search. A user may know the term they want to find results on, but not know any related terms.

For Example	You may be performing a search using the word 'Ocean'. Keyword Search has the ability to include words like 'water,' 'shipping', or 'marine life' to further expand the breadth and scope of your search.
	The keyword results will enable a user to find programs that may not have resulted from entering a specific word.

To work with the Keywords Search click **Keywords > Search**. When clicked, the Keywords screen will open (Figure 104).

Figure 104	Keywords Screen
riguio io-	10,00,00,00,00,00

Search		Saved Groups	Shared Groups
Ente	er Sea	rch Terms Here	
	Show	vunused terms in :	search results

This screen contains three tabs which correspond directly with the three options in the Keywords Main Menu: Search, Saved Groups, and Shared Groups.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 132 of 144



To begin using this page, type any term in the blank search text box and click the Search button (Figure 105).

Term Label	Occurrences T	Include Related	🗌 Inclue	de Broader	🔲 Include	e Narrower
Nuclear ships	2			0 🗘		0 🗘 ^
Q-ships	12			0 🗘		0 🗘
Training-ships	1			0 🗘		0 🗘
Shipping	19			0 🗘		0 🗘
Space ships	3			0 🗘		0 🗘
ShipsElectronic equipment	9			0 🗘		0 🗘
ShipsSafety regulations	32			0 🗘		0 🗘
ShipsInspection	2			0 🗘		0 🗘
Ships	12			0 🗘		0 🗘
Merchant marineSafety measures	32			0 🗘		0 🗘

Figure 105 Searching for a Keyword

The page will refresh displaying the additional keywords or terms related to the term you searched using.

Starting from first checkbox under the search text box, the screen is as follows:

Show unused terms in	The search will return keywords that are associated with SPIN programs.
search results	Checking this box will allow keywords not associated to SPIN programs to return as results.
	By default, we only provide keywords that are associated to SPIN programs. Selecting this option will expand results to return keywords that are not associated with any SPIN programs, which could be used to simply browse the keyword set.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 133 of 144



Hide terms	Checking this box will hide keywords from the search that already are contained within one of your saved groups.
from search results	if you've already saved a keyword in one of your groups, this will not display unless the box is checked.
(Select)	Clicking the checkbox in the yellow header of the first column of the grid selects all of the terms on that specific page.
	Clicking the checkbox in the the first column of the grid beside a select Term Label selects that specific keyword.
	If you visit another page, the selections will not be saved.
Term Label	This is a list of all the word(s)/term(s) related to the specific word you're searching.
	Clicking the specific term link opens a box containing information on the alternate labels, broader terms, narrow terms, related terms and the Library of Congress Link.
	Preferred Label: This is the specific label link you clicked under Term Label.
	Alternate Label: This is other possible words that may be used in conjunction to the word you clicked under Term Label.
	Broader Terms: These are additional words that encompass the word you're using. For example, ship is the broader term for shipping.
	Narrow Terms: These are more specific words affiliated with your Term Label. For example, nuclear warships are the narrower term for shipping.
	Related Terms: These are related words to your term label. This is rare, and most keywords will not have them. Define relationships that are not heirgraphical in nature.
(Filter)	Click the Filter T button next to the specific category you wish to filter.
	Using the drop down menu, choose the filter, type in the specification and click Filter.
	The results list will refresh according to your decision, displaying the new information.
Occurances	This is the number of SPIN programs associated to this keyword.

SPIN USER GUIDE, *VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc.* Page 134 of 144



Include Related	By clicking this checkbox, the search will automatically include keywords associated to the SPIN Program.
	For example, if you select Fire and click the Include Related icon, your search will automatically include any keywords that are related to the term; such as heat or smoke.
	Returning results with any related terms is very rare since a lot of the words do not contain direct relationships with other words.

4.8.1.1 Including Broader and Narrower Terms

On the Keyword Search tab, you may also select to utilize the Include Broader and Include Narrower functionality to create varying levels of searching 'depth' to further customize your Keyword Search.

This functionality is optionally selected for each keyword chosen for a group. This allows a single selection to traverse the keyword hierarchy, either up or down, when the keyword is used in an advanced search.

Include Broader	This is the level to which you want to broaden your search.
	By checking Include Broader and changing the number from the default of 0 to a number from 1-10 (with 10 being the broadest level), you will be able to include up to 10 times broader terms in your keyword search.
	For example, if you went two levels broader in your search (changed the number to two) for the word Shipping, you might return the terms 'Steamboat' or 'Lines'.

Instead of selecting multiple keywords, a user can choose to select a single keyword and "Include Narrower Terms" a user-defined number of levels down, and this will automatically include all of the children terms that many levels down the hierarchy when the search is run.

For Example	For example, selecting the term "Metastasis" and include narrower terms 1 level down, the search will also find opportunities that are associated to "Bone Metastasis", "Lymphatic Metastasis", or "Liver Metastasis".
	Choosing two levels down will also include all of the narrower terms of those three keywords as well.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 135 of 144



In Figure 106, we have selected to include two levels of broader terms for my keyword search of Transportation, Term Label 'Terminals'.

Transp	ortation				Search	1	
⊻ sr	iow unused terms in seal	ch results 💌	Hide terms already sele	cted from se	arch results		
	Term Label 🛛 🕇	Occurren 🝸	Include Related	🔲 Include	e Broader	🔲 Include	Narrower
V	Terminals (Transportation)	4		V	2 🗘		_ ^
	Transportation	597				crease value	° ‡
	Urban transportation	23			° ‡		° ≎
	Penal transportation	0			° ≎		0
	Transportation, Automotive	99			° ‡		⁰ ‡
	<u>Urban</u> <u>transportation</u> policy	12			° \$		0 🗘
	School children Transportation	9			⁰ ‡		° ‡
G N	123456	7 8 9 10 1	10 🔻 F FI		Dis	playing items	s 1 - 10 of 433

Figure 106 Broadening Your Search

Include Narrower	This is the level to which you'd like to narrow your search.
	of levels you want to specify the term. Each level you may go 10 times narrower in your search, returning very specific results.

In Figure 107, we have selected to include two levels of narrower terms for my keyword search of Transportation, Term Label 'Terminals'.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 136 of 144



Figure 107 Narrowing Your Search

Transpo Sho	ortation	rch results 🗵	Hide terms already sele	cted from sea	Search	1	
-	Term Label 🔻	Occurran 🔻	Include Related	Include	Broader		a Narrower
7	Terminals (Transportation)	4					
	Transportation	597			° ‡		0 Increase val
	Urban transportation	23			° ‡		° ≎
[]	Penal transportation	0			⁰ \$		● ◆
	Transportation. Automotive	99			⁰ ‡		° ≎
	Urban transportation policy	12			° ‡		° \$
	School children Transportation	9			° ‡		° ≑
<u>с</u> и	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	7 8 9 10 1	10 🔻 F FI		Dis	playing items	s 1 - 10 of 433

After you have selected your keyword terms and your broadening/narrowing levels, click the Save Selections and Continue button to save your keyword search settings. When you click the Save Selections and Continue button, the Keyword Group Name popup (Figure 108) will appear.

Figure 108	Keyword Group Name Popup
rigure ivo	Reyword Group Name Popu

Keyword Group Name	×
 Create new group Use existing group 	
	Continue Cancel

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 137 of 144



You can select to create a new group or select to use an existing keyword group. Once you have made you keyword group name selection, click Continue to save your keyword search.

If you click the Cancel button, you are returned back to the Keyword Search tab with your current settings and selections unchanged.

If you decide to click the Exit button on the bottom of the Keyword Search tab, a Confirm Exit popup (Figure 109) asking you if you would like to discard any changes you have made.



Figure 109 Confirm Exit Popup

If you click the Discard Changes button, you are returned back to the SPIN Main Screen (Figure 3) with no Keyword Search changes made.

If you click on the Cancel button, you are returned to the Keyword Search Tab, with your settings and selections unchanged.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 138 of 144



4.8.2 Saved Keyword Groups

When you create a new Keyword Group, that new group is displayed in the Saved Keyword Groups section which is accessed by clicking **Keywords > Saved Keyword Groups**.

When clicked, the Saved Keyword Groups tab will open (Figure 104).

Figure 110 Saved Keyword Groups

	Group Name	T	Shared	T	Delete	
+	Transportation - Terminals				×	
+	Transportation - Shipping				×	
+	Transportation - Automobile				×	
+	Transportation - Railroad				×	
+	Transportation - Gasoline				×	

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 139 of 144



The following details the functionality of the Saved Keyword Groups tab:

(Expand)	Pressing this icon expands the specific group's information.					
1	To minimize the selection, click the \square icon.					
Group Name	The name of the keyword group.					
(Filter)	This filter icon functions just like the other filter icons within the system, allowing you to utilize a drop down menu, choose to filter, type in the specification and click Filter. The results list we refresh according to your decision, displaying the new information. Please see Section 4.1.6, Filtering Search Results for more					
Chanad						
	Checking the Shared checkbox is shares the keyword group. Once you save the changes, the shared group will appear on the Shared Keyword Groups page (Figure 112).					
	Click the Shared I a second time to take the group off the Shared list.					
	Please see Section 4.8.3, Shared Keyword Groups for more information.					
Delete ×	Clicking the Delete $\stackrel{\textstyle imes}{}$ icon located at the end of the group line on to delete the specific group.					
	When clicked, the group will be deleted from the list, and it will no longer be available on either the Saved Keyword Groups page or the Shared Keyword Groups page.					
Critical Warning	Deleting a keyword group is a permanent step, and cannot be reversed. Make sure you are only deleting groups you are positive you do not need.					
(Refresh)	Clicking the icon refreshes the screen. If you've made any changes and the page did not automatically refresh, click this button and the page will reload, displaying the new/adjusted information.					

Figure 111 is an illustration of the expanded detail of a Saved Keyword Group.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 140 of 144



Figure 111 Saved Groups – Expanded Detail

	Group Name						T	Shar	ed T	Delete		
-	Transportation -	Term	inals							×		1
	Term Label	т	Occurren	٣	Include Rel	٣	🔲 Include Bro.	. T	🔲 Includ	e Nar	T	
	<u>Terminals</u> (Transportation)		4				2	\$		2	\$	
	5											
+	Transportation - Shipping							×				
+	Transportation - Automobile							×				
+	Transportation - Railroad						×					
+	Transportation -	Gaso	oline							×		

4.8.3 Shared Keyword Groups

When you share a Keyword Group on the Saved Keyword Groups screen (Figure 110), that new group is displayed in the Shared Keyword Groups screen (Figure 112) which is accessed by clicking **Keywords > Saved Keyword Groups**.

When clicked, the Saved Keyword Groups tab will open (Figure 104).



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 141 of 144

Figure 112 Shared Keyword Groups

oroup rearrie	T Create	🝸 Modified	🝸 Created By	📉 Сору 🍸
No records to display.				
G				

Note Anonymous users who have the ability to view these shared groups. However, a user must be logged into the SPIN system if they would like to create their own saved and/or shared keyword groups.	Please Note	This shared keyword group functionality is available to Anonymous users who have the ability to view these shared groups. However, a user must be logged into the SPIN system if they would like to create their own saved and/or shared keyword groups.
---	----------------	--

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 142 of 144



The following fields are available on the Shared Groups tab:

Group Name	The display of the name of the keyword group.			
(Filters)	The filter icons beside the Group Name, Created, Modified, and Created By column headers function just like the other filter icons within the system, allowing you to utilize a drop down menu choose the filter, type in the specification and click Filter. The results list will refresh according to your decision, displaying the new information. Please see Section 4.1.6, Filtering Search Results for more information on the filter functionality.			
Created	The display of the date the keyword group was created.			
Modified	The display of the date the keyword group was last modified.			
Created By	The display of the name of the user who created and shared the keyword group.			
Сору	Checking the Copy checkbox Copies the keyword group to your user profile. Once you click the Exit button, the keyword group will be saved to your profile (if not already yours)			
	Click the Copy a second time to take the group off the list of groups to copy to your profile. Please see Section 4.8.3, Shared Keyword Groups for more information.			
(Refresh)	Clicking the icon refreshes the screen. If you've made any changes and the page did not automatically refresh, click this button and the page will reload, displaying the new/adjusted information.			

4.8.4 Using a Keyword Group as Part of a Search

Within the Advanced search, one of the available fields is "Keywords". Using this field will allow a logged in user to select one of their keyword groups as an Advanced search expression.

SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 143 of 144



Please Note	This shared keyword group functionality is available to Anonymous users who have the ability to view these shared groups. Therefore, an Anonymous user may perform an Advanced search using a shared Keyword Group (see Figure 113).
----------------	---

Figure 113 Using a Keyword Group as Part of a Search

infoed SPIN			
Search mode: AND 7 AND X	DVANCED		Search 📑 ?
Keywords Equal To	Frog Research 🗸 🗸	👔 🗙	
	Transportation		-
	Frog Research		

As you can see in Figure 113, the Keywords picklist contains a list of all shared Keyword Groups.



SPIN USER GUIDE, VERSION 13 InfoEd Global, Inc. Page 144 of 144